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As is often the case in business, it
was a year of contrasts for Amtrak?
The hard work of employees resulted
in ridership and revenue totals that
exceeded the previous years—even
as we continued preparing for the
mandated elimination of federal
operating support. We came the
closest we may have ever come to a
debilitating financial crisis—but the
year ended with us headed toward
receipt of a portion of our long-
sought capital funding, created as
FY98 began in the form of a
$2.3-billion capital investment fund.

‘We remained steady in our progress
toward meeting the dictates of the
Administration and Congress to be
free of federal operating support by
2002. Our business plan, which is
designed to meet that deadline,
continued to reap encouraging
results.

For instance, difficult FY96 decisions
to eliminate some long-distance
service led to FY97 ridership gains
as the freed equipment permitted
expanded service on more produc-
tive routes. Those included the City
of New Orleans, the Three Rivers?

the Empire Builder, and the

California Zephyr.

The process of growing our ridership
and revenue also resulted in exciting
new services, and the achievement of
some milestones. The Silver Palm, a
third New York to Florida train, was
added, and the Twilight Shoreliner
made a flashy debut. This new train
not only expands Northeast Corridor
service to include Williamsburg and
Newport News, VA, but it offers the
newest technology in single-level
sleeping accommodations: Viewliner®
equipment. The media loves it, and
so do our customers—ridership has
jumped significantly. The Metroliner®
Service also broke prior ridership
records.

| —

A LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT

A good part of our growing strength
can be attributed to the power of
partnership. Some of those important
partners are state governments.
Thanks to commitments made by
states, California has service to four
new cities; Texas and Oregon have
continued service; Vermont has new
service to Rutland; and Illinois and
Wisconsin have new multi-year
agreements.

Infrastructure improvements made
possible by partnership efforts
resulted in the start of facility
upgrades in our Delaware shops;
higher track speeds in Michigan; a
commitment to improve 30th Street
Station in Philadelphia; improve-
ments to tracks in New Jersey; and
building repairs at Beech Grove, IN.
And design was completed this year
on the innovative European-style
Talgo trains, funded jointly by
Amtrak and the state of Washington.

But our greatest partners, as always,
were our employees. Whether
dealing with mud slides in the West,
or a [reak April near-blizzard in New
England, they continued making
Amtrak the highest-quality way to
travel America at “see level.”

Together, we all look forward to a
year of continued progress, both in
our performance measures, and in
the future of passenger rail in

America.

Sincerely,

AT O

Thomas M. Downs
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Thomas M. Downs
Chairman, President and CEO
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INTRODUCTION

The results are starting to come in—
and the American traveling public is
the winner. The results come from a

directive given us three years ago by
Congress and the White House:
Make the changes and improvements
necessary for Amtrak® to be free of
federal operating support by 2002.

So that’s what we've been doing.
Some of it would be described casu-
ally as “belt tightening,” which does
no justice to the degree of change it
represents for employees and
customers. Some of it has meant a
total reexamination of everything we
do, and how we do it—a process
called Crossing 2002, in which
“We've always done it this way” is an
unacceptable answer. It's meant new
teams to coordinate Amtrak’s
marketing plans, to manage the
company’s capital assets, to maxi-
mize the availability of equipment,
and much more.

And all of it has meant thinking,
working, and acting like whatever
gets improved today could mean
whether a national passenger rail
system survives tomorrow. It has
meant treating each customer as the
one person who could make the
difference in our future.

Early in this fiscal year, we told
Congress about our need for a
“three-legged stool.” We said the
three legs were restructuring of the
railroad into a more businesslike,
customer-focused organization,
adequate capital funding, and a

reauthorization bill with changes in
law to allow Amtrak to act more

efficiently. We've done the restruc-
turing, and, just after our fiscal year
ended, Congress did its parts—
passage of a reauthorization bill,
which in turn unlocked access to a
$2.3-billion capital investment fund.

Amtrak’s goal, as reflected
throughout this report, is to continue
building on the accomplishments of
the past three years. We will do so by
investing our new capital wisely,
particularly in High-Speed Rail and
other efforts that offer attractive
returns, and by pursuing every
means of providing passengers with
the highest quality of service.

Getting to this encouraging point has
required great dedication from all of
our 23,000 employees, and we're grat-
ified by the results. We're beginning
to see a positive trend—ridership in
FY97 was up 2.7 percent. Charts and
graphs throughout this report illus-
trate similar improvements in other
key indicators during these past three
years. Whether in passenger-related
income, equipment utilization, or
other important measurements, the

movement is positive.

If that trend continues, our future
will be a successful one. And if that
trend continues, more than 65
million passengers a year who rely
on Amtrak either directly, or via
commuter agencies, will know that
they’re the true winners in this
ongoing challenge.

Welcome to America’s national
passenger rail system.




New technologies were
introduced in 1997.

I

Ti Am’rralc.
Just Got Easier

Amtrak's new technologies save
time when you're on the go!

Quick Access to Information
1-800-USA-RAIL has easy touch-tone options.

Surf the Net to Board the Train
Book and pay for your trip on the Internet at
wiww.amirak.com

Credit Card by Phone
Call 1-800-USA-RAIL to purchase tickets.

Quik-trak Ticket
New machines available at busy Amirak stations.
Make reservations and pay on the spot.

No Cash? No Checks? No Problem
Amtrak ticket counters and machines now accept
many major debit cards.

Amniuh

Express

1-800-USA-RAIL ‘www.amtrak.com

Amtrak’s® ultimate success hinges on achieving consistently high levels of

CUSTOMER SERVIGE

customer service. In 1995, the company restructured corporate decision-

making to bring it “closer to the train platform.” In 1996, it was honored

by Knowledge Exchange as the transportation company with the “Most

Improved Customer Service.” And in 1997, Amtrak continued to

implement significant customer-service improvements.

Making it Easier to Get
On Board

Several new computer, telephone and
communication technologies intro-
duced in FY97 make it easier for
customers to use Amtraks services.

Customers can now use credit cards
to make advance payment for “will-
call” tickets, using either the tele-
phone or a personal computer.

At Amtrak’s Internet web site...
www.amtrak.com...customers around
the world can make reservations,
purchase tickets, and learn about
Amtrak’s trains, routes, and accom-
modations. The site offers customers
quick, convenient access to our
products, and also reduces the costs
associated with each transaction
substantially. The Internet is
expected to generate a minimum

of $18 million in sales in FY98.

And, customers calling Amtrak’s
reservation line, 1-800-USA-RAIL,
now benefit from a new computerized
voice response unit (VRU). The VRU
provides schedule and fare informa-
tion, allows callers to make reserva-
tions, and enables customers to learn
the status of any train in the system.

Finally, nearly 190 self-service ticket
machines are now in service in
major stations across the nation.

Amtrak also unveiled a new interac-
tive CD-ROM for travel agents. The
“Amtrak Accommodations Guide”
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allows agents to show clients
colorful, engaging information about
train interiors, sleeping accommoda-
tions and on-board services—directly
on a computer screen.

Customer Service Support
Customer satisfaction is often a
reflection of something as simple as

how well everything is working on a

*Route and service actions
resulted in a nine percent
reduction in seat miles
between 1994 and 1996,

On Amtrak; you travel at
“see level.”




Amtrak® operates
service on 24,000
miles of track,
~of which only 730
are owned and
- controlled by the

company.

train. Starting this year,
reporting and tracking of
on-board mechanical prob-

lems became easier with .

SYSTEMWIDE CUSTOMER SATISFACTION INDEX

(Three-Month Rolling Average)

the advent of the
Interactive Defect Relay
System on many of qs
Amtrak’s trains. The
system allows any on-

i

board employee with tele- 80
phone access to report

equipment defects en
route. Reports are auto-
matically transmitted to
the next en route mainte-
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nance facility, thereby
speeding up repairs and corrections.

Amtrak also continued imple-
menting a unique two-way mobile
satellite communications and
tracking system that links trains and
support facilities. The system
enhances train scheduling, mainte-
nance activities, the placement of
commissary orders, and the resale of
“no-show” seats.

Customer Satisfaction Index
Aside from measuring repeat rider-
ship, how does Amtrak know how
it's doing in satisfying the customer?
Since FY95, the company has
conducted monthly surveys of
customers to get feedback on their
travel experience.

Through this process, customers
have been asked about their overall
level of satisfaction with Amtrak, as
well as their satisfaction with 13
specific aspects of their actual trip.

During this fiscal year, the company
initiated an upgrade to the customer
satisfaction tracking system. The
improvements are intended to
provide employees with more
detailed feedback from customers,
which in turn help employees
provide better service. For example,
schedules have been changed; menus
have been upgraded; on-board
announcements have been revised;
and restroom technology has been
improved.

Bikes On Board

It’s a transportation mode within a
mode. Responding to the requests
of passengers, Amtrak began
testing new bike policies on
various trains throughout the
system this year. Fully assembled
bikes were taken onboard for the
first time, and either stored in
special racks in the lower level of
a Superliner coach or secured in
overhead luggage racks.

AMTRAK

Effective August 1, 1997, the
Amtrak’ Cardinal operating between
Washington, Cincinnati, Chicago
and intermediate points will accept

Bicycles On Board.

Now you can explore the wild and scenic beauty of the
Greenbrier River Trail, the New River National River Trails, the
historic wonder of the Mount Vemon Trail, the pastoral vistas of the
Monon Rail Trail, or the urban vitality of Chicago's
Lakefront Path, and bring your assembled bike along
fer the ride. The Amirak” Cardinal serves all these
greot biking locafions and more. Board and detrain
with your bike at any stofion along the 900 mile
route and while on board, enjoy the carefree com-
fort of our spacious cooches, snacks and beverages
in our lounge, or private sleeping accommadations
if you choose, all without the hassles of driving.

Bicycles may be rolled onto the train unboxed
Passengers bringing bicycles must reserve spoce
in advance. Space is limited and there is a $15
charge per bicycle. See o station ticket agent,
call 1-800-USA-RAIL or your

N wovel agent for schedules
' ond fore information
=2

et




Amtrak’s® revenue
covers more of its
operating expenses
than does any
other national
passenger railroad

in the world.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Improved customer service is possible only through greater emphasis on
employees and their training, involvement, and service empowerment.
' Despite a difficult debate over labor-related legislation, Amtrak® in FY97

continued to expand its understanding and involvement of employees in

the service delivery equation.

The shared knowledge and values
that define a company’s culture do
not coalesce overnight. Development
of that communications link is an
evolutionary process.

Like any service provider aiming for

excellence, Amtrak seeks recogni-
1 tion—by its customers and work
" force alike—as a unified, customer-
focused business that values and
engages the skills, passion, and
creativity of all its employees.
Because no effort to unite the
company in such a purpose can
succeed if it doesn’t carry the voice
of the employees, employee forums
in FY96 solicited ideas on what
needs to be done.

Participants concluded that front-line
and middle managers carry the heav-
iest burden as agents of cultural

change. To launch new directions,
they must be educated on the goals,
and consulted on what they need to
achieve them. Accordingly, a series
of “managers’ assemblies” were held
in 1997.

. Approximately 500 managers

‘ attended assemblies of various

‘ formats in locations throughout the
company, such as Oakland, Chicago,
Washington, D.C., Jacksonville,
Albany, Beech Grove, Los Angeles,
Seattle, and Boston. For the most
part, sessions were day-long, interac-
tive workshops. In his opening
remarks at the assemblies, CEQ Tom
Downs said his desire is to bring
Amtrak’s corporate culture to the
level of successful companies that

“totally engage their work force.”

Employee Development
Program participants, left to
right: Sharon Allen, Cindy
Ray, John Eisenhauer; and
Judith Bevelheimer:

Assembly leaders from the company’s
three Strategic Business Units (SBUs)
explained elements of the workplace
culture Amtrak is striving to achieve.
Presidents of the Northeast Corridor,
Amtrak Intercity, and Amtrak West®

SBUs briefed participants on busi-
ness initiatives, with emphasis on
areas that will benefit from deeper
employee involvement. In break-out
groups, participants identified and
analyzed examples of successful
employee involvement practices, and
“brainstormed” issues that need to
be addressed for managers to become
stronger leaders.

Employee Input

As Amtrak sharpens its focus on
superior customer service, it is the
employees who have played a crucial
role in redefining training programs,
service levels, on-board amenities,
overall efficiencies, and business

strategies. Why? Because employees |
know what works and what doesn’t in

delivering service to our passengers.

For that reason, investment in

employee training and development
across every level of our business not ‘
only gives employees the tools they w
need to do their jobs effectively, but

it contributes to the success of the
corporation. ‘

e ———



For instance, this year an Amtrak
Employee Development Program
was started on the West Coast. It
provides agreement-covered
employees an opportunity to learn
more about our business by serving
in various management roles. After a
successful pilot project, management
adopted the program permanently.
One employee from each of the busi-
ness unit’s three regions, plus one
from the Reservation and Sales Call
Center in Riverside, are chosen for
three-month tours in the program.

Employees were also an integral
component of several new-equip-
ment design teams during the year.
In the West and Northeast,
employees participated in the design
of the coming Talgo tilt-technology
trains, and the new High-Speed Rail
trains that will operate between
Boston and Washington, D.C. Both
have benefited from the advice of
engineers, conductors, lead service
attendants, and others. Also, Amtrak
Intercity employees contributed to
the decisions made in creating desig-
nated smoking lounges on 59 cars.

New Means of Communicating
Two new employee communications
tools made their debut in FY97,
“Because You Asked” (BYA) now
accompanies the paycheck of all
agreement-covered employees every
two weeks. Produced by Employee

BECAUSE

Y®OUsien

Communications, “BYA”
is a short and snappy
piece that answers ques-
tions from employees:
“Whats the deal with this

half-cent that Amtrak needs?... Why
do part-time employees have to pay
the same union dues as full-time
people?”

Also this year, employee communica-
tions capabilities expanded with the
launch of a regional toll-free number
with weekly updates on that region’s
news and information. These
regional and corporate services
feature recorded messages that

include Amtrak success stories,

I~3

system information, legislative
updates, marketing initiatives, and
personnel news and notes.

Police Saluted

The Amtrak Police Department
(APD) earned a special salute during
this past year. The force became the
only nationwide police agency to
win reaccreditation by the

Commission on
Accreditation for
Law Enforcement
Agencies. Of the
22,000 police
agencies across
the country, only

383 have won

reaccreditation. A team of on-site
assessors from the prestigious
program evaluated the APD on
policy and procedure, administra-
tion, operations, and support

services.

Diversity in the Workplace

In order to assist Amtrak in its
continuing efforts to encourage more
diversity and understanding in the
workplace, an Advisory Committee
on Diversity was formed this year.
The committee of outside authorities
on diversity and related issues has
begun work on filling a new senior
management position to direct diver-
sity efforts. The committee will meet
periodically and continue to advise
Amtrak.

‘Employer of the Year’

Each year, the Women’s
Transportation Seminar (WTS)
recognizes businesses that have
enhanced the industry through
outstanding affirmative action in
hiring and promoting; by supporting
the continuing education of their
employees; and by encouraging
women students to enter the field.
So, it was an honor when the
Philadelphia chapter of the WTS
named Amtrak’s Northeast Corridor
SBU as the “1996-97 Employer of
the Year.”

Amtrak® carries
over 40 percent
of the combined
air-rail market
between
Washington, D.C.
and New York City.
Without Amtrak,
10,000 packed
DC-9s would have
to be added to the
skies between
the two cities

every year.



Business Education

Amtrak’s Business Education
Training Program, begun in FY96,
aims to make managers and senior
labor leaders even more familiar with
financial issues affecting the company.
That knowledge is critical to their
ability to help the company increase

efficiency and grow the business.

By the end of FY97, more than 80
percent of the eligible employees had
taken “Business Education 1,” and
nearly 200 had gone through a more
in-depth follow-up course, “Business
Education 11.” In FY98 a third
course, “Business Education
Orientation,” will be added and
made available to all levels of agree-
ment-covered and management
employees.

Labor Relations

The majority of Amtrak’s labor
contracts have been open for
changes since January 1995. Two
contracts—with ASWC (on-board
service employees) and TCU (cler-
ical employees)—have been open for
changes since January 1997.

At the end of the fiscal year, Amtrak
was in mediation with all unions
except the ASWC and the BMWE
(maintenance of way employees).
Early in the current fiscal year an
agreement was reached with the
BMWE, and a strike was averted.

Amtrak has been meeting with all of
the other unions, and will continue
to do so on a regular basis.

Those Who Were Lost in Service
A pair of tragic incidents involving
employees marred the fiscal year
ending Sept. 30. A shooting at
Amtrak’s locomotive repair shop in
Wilmington, DE, resulted in the loss
of two lives. Foreman John Jensen
died at the scene and two other
employees were seriously injured.
The assailant, Amtrak machinist
Richard Herr, was shot and killed at
the scene by Wilmington police. In
August, employees in Wilmington

dedicated a memorial to John Jensen.

In November 1996, Amtrak
Maintenance of Way employee
Aaron King Jr. was struck by a train
and killed while working on the
Secaucus Transfer project in New

Jersey.

Aaron King Jr. has been recognized
on the memorial plaque displayed at
‘Washington Union Station, as will
John Jensen.

Memorial plaque for
John Jensen at the
Wilmington Maintenanc
Facility.

Aaron Coleman King Jr
Trackman/Watchman



New Viewliner* sleeper cars
are all in service now.

-~ EQUIPMENT —

Increased passenger satisfaction, and resulting ridership and revenue

growth, are related directly to Amtrak’s® ability to acquire and deploy

modern equipment, designed for 21st-century travel needs. The past

Jiscal year brought significant new strides in equipment replacement,

enhancement, and utilization.

Viewliner® and Superliner® Il
Equipment

The last of the 50 new Amtrak-
designed Viewliners®—the first new
single-level sleeping cars manufac-
tured in the U.S. in 40 years—were
added to Midwest and East Coast
trains this year. Roomier and brighter,
they've been a major hit with passen-
gers and employees alike. Plus, a
Viewliner® car can accommodate eight
more revenue passengers than its
predecessor, the Heritage sleeping car.

Amtrak took delivery of the last of
195 new Superliner® 1I cars which are
operating on the Auto Train® and
several western trains. These bi-level
cars have bigger windows and larger
compartments than the original
Superliner” equipment.

In an effort to provide to a smoke-free
environment for its passengers and
employees without losing the
patronage of its smoking customers,

Amtrak devised a way for both

“camps” to co-exist peacefully on the
same long-distance train. After exten-
sive testing of enclosed exhaust and
ventilation systems, self-contained
smoking rooms were created within
59 cars—34 Superliner” coach/
baggage cars, and 25 Heritage sleepers
now used as crew dorms. Soon, every
Amtrak long-distance train will have a
designated smoking room, and the
lounge cars will be smoke-free.

Concept 2000 Metroliner: Cars
The transition from existing equip-
ment to reworked Concept 2000 cars
began on the Metroliner® Service. The
renovated cars offer brighter new
interiors and color schemes, halogen
lighting, and computer hook-ups at
each seat. Cafe cars feature large
photographs of city skylines along
the route—including one of New
York taken by Mayor Rudolph
Guiliani. The equipment, constructed
by Amtrak’s workers, received rave
reviews from passengers.

High-Speed Rail Trainsets

Preparation continues for the 1999
introduction of the new era in High-
Speed Rail between Boston and
Washington, D.C. Trainset design
ideas were gathered from 20,000
customers through surveys and focus
groups. Just as important, focus
groups and design-studio site visits
have allowed the input of employees.
This unprecedented program of
customer and employee research will
ensure that the groundbreaking
trainsets are both comfortable and
workable.

If all the pieces of
Amtrak® passenger
equipment —
locomotives and
cars — were
coupled together,
they would form a

train 32 miles

long.

Design of the High-Speed Rail
trains will reflect the input of
customers and employees alike.



The modular Flexliner
features a rubber front and a
unique “fold-back” door design
that allows easy passage
between coupled trains.

The new Talgo will feature
redesigned interiors, a
dramatic green and creme
exterior paint scheme and
new state-of-the-art

F59 locomotives.

Equipment Demonstrations

In partnership with states and other
interested parties, Amtrak tested and
demonstrated some new equipment
in FY97. Displays and demonstration
service of the Danish-built Flexliner
in Missouri during April attracted
thousands and resulted in a 45-
percent increase in revenue for the
month. In June, the Flexliner test on
the Hiawatha Service, between
Chicago and Milwaukee, resulted in
a ridership increase of 10 percent.

Amtrak-Siemens demonstrations of
the RegioSprinter were completed in
the West and Midwest. The self-
propelled diesel unit is being
promoted as a local transit alternative.

Talgo

Design was completed this year on
the new Talgo tilt trains, and the first
partially-completed coach shells
arrived on the West Coast as the
fiscal year ended. The first trainsets
Amtrak has ever bought in coopera-
tion with a state transportation
agency, the equipment will be placed
in Cascades service within the
Northwest Corridor in 1998.

Bought by Amtrak and the
‘Washington State Department of
Transportation, the trains begin
assembly at the Talgo plant in Spain,
and then will be finished at Talgo’s
Seattle facility. Pulled by new F59
locomotives, the new Talgo trains
will feature comforts and amenities
that build on the success of the
leased Talgo trains that have been
operating in the Pacific Northwest
service since April 1994,

The new Talgo consist will be 12

cars (each about half the length of an
existing Amtrak car), including six
standard coaches, two custom-class
cars, a completely redesigned bistro

car, dining car, baggage car with

bicycle racks and space for skis and
snow boards, and an end service car

to generate all electrical, audio, video
and air conditioning needs. Meeting

the requirements of the Americans

with Disabilities Act, it will be the '
most accessible train in North '
America.

Amtrak California Cars
The final delivery of passenger rail

equipment purchased by the state of
California was completed this year.
Amutrak California, the
partnership between the
California Department
of Transportation
(Caltrans) and Amtrak,
is used as the distinctive
equipments brand iden-
tity, and as the banner
under which cooperative
corridor marketing

efforts are made. - £

The sleek, bi-level
California Coach Cars
feature panoramic windows,
comfortable reclining seats,
overhead storage bins,
bicycle storage areas and
in-seat audio systems.

In all, California has invested in 32
coaches, 14 coach/cab cars, 14
dining cars, six coach/baggage cars
and 11 locomotives. This investment
has contributed to the continuous
rise in ridership on all three routes
using the new equipment.
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This custom-designed
“Kiddie Kar” features
colorful benches and toys,
iffed animals, board games
and a video monitor for
cartoons and movies.

been delivered and placed in long-
distance service as the fiscal year
ended, with the last units scheduled
to arrive in October. The P32s will

51
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Coast Starlight Gets Even Better

Amtrak’s premier West Coast long-

distance train, the Coast Starlight,
unveiled equipment enhancements
in FY97 that are making the
customer’s travel experience even
more enjoyable.

New first-class lounge cars, available
exclusively to passengers in sleeping
accommodations, challenge the
quality of grand-lounge cars of
another era. The Pacific Parlor cars
are modified Heritage Santa Fe dual-
level cars, refurbished by Amtrak
specialists.

The cars feature an upper-level
lounge and bar area with lustrous
wood paneling, and a lower-level
mini-theater with a large video
screen and surround-sound audio
system. All four Coast Starlight train-
sets will feature the Pacific Parlor car
by early 1998.

Also new in FY97 was a custom-
| designed “Kiddie Kar” on the lower
| level of selected Superliner® 11

be delivered in the Spring of 1998.

All of the new locomotives are
capable of 110-mph speeds in high-
revenue corridor service. Specifically
designed for passenger service, the
P42 features an additional 1,000 1
horsepower over its predecessor, 1
improved fuel efficiency, lower emis-
sions, increased crew comfort and

crash resistance tolerance, lighter
weight, and a low-profile design. The
unit sets new standards for higher-
speed passenger equipment on North
American railroads.

This year, the company also ordered
21 of the General Motors Electro-
Motive Divisions F-59PHI locomo- |
tive. These units are planned to serve
Amtrak West’s corridor routes in the
states of California, Washington, and
Nevada. Delivery will begin in the
Spring of 1998. The units deliver
fuel efficiency through electronic fuel
injection, and comply with the most
stringent California emissions
standards.

In July, Amtrak signed a contract
with GEC Alsthom Transportation,
Inc., to provide the “kits” necessary
to rebuild 31 AEM-7 locomotives,
with an option for an additional 22
units. The work will be done at our
Wilmington (DE) Maintenance, and
is scheduled to be completed within
the next four years.

More power — 120 new P42
locomotives were ordered.

| coach/baggage cars, featuring

" colorful benches and toys, stuffed Eq UI FM ENT UTl UZATI 0 N
animals, board games, and a video
monitor for cartoons and movies. 1994 1995 1996 1997
Locomotives Locomotives 338 313 299 332
Faced with an aging locomotive fleet, Availability 85% 88% 88% 88%
Amtrak began a replacement
program with powerful new locomo- Average Age (years) 13.4 13.9 14.4 12.0
tives from General Electric. The
company ordered 120 P42 locomo- Gars 1,852 1722 1.730 178
tives, and eight P32 dual-mode loco- .
motives, all of which offer high A lgiabilay s il o otk
reliability and lower maintenance Average Age (years) 22.4 218 0.7 19.8
costs. More than 100 of the P42s had
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A happy WhistleStop
Tour visitor.

Reservation System
Improvements

The call handling capability of the
reservation sales system equipment
increased significantly this year.
Major technology upgrades were
installed, featuring new functions
that include advance-payment, auto-
mated voice-response service,
Internet booking and expanded self-
service ticketing.

Concurrently, reservation agent
productivity soared. That was the

result of improved sales training and
techniques, team management, sales
incentive programs, and closer coor-
dination with corporate, business
unit, and product line staff. In FY97
the reservation system handled
nearly one million more calls than in
FY96—a 3-percent increase. Ticketed
revenue per person-hour increased
by 42.7 percent, with the ratio of
ticketed sales per expense dollar
improving by 35.9 percent.

WhistleStop Tour

America came out to “see the
train” as the WhistleStop Tour of
the Great American Station
Foundation™ attracted thousands
of visitors, plus heavy media
attention.

With the tour continuing as the
fiscal year ended, the special
Amtrak equipment had welcomed
more than 50,000 visitors in over
70 cities small and large. Amtrak
is a principal contributor to the
foundation, whose mission is to
encourage the preservation and
restoration of train stations in
America.

The train and its custom-designed
displays on the history of stations
became a media favorite, and they
reminded people of the conve-
nience and comfort of passenger
rail travel.

As the year was coming to a close,
print coverage reached a total
circulation of 15.6 million; televi-
sion coverage reached 8.9 million
viewers; and radio had 406,000
potential listeners. It was esti-
mated that the same exposure as
advertising would have cost $2.46
million.

As examples of the tour’s mission,
renovations of stations led to
expanded Amtrak service this
year. Daily service on the New

York-Chicago Three Rivers®
returned to the restored station in
Youngstown, OH, as did Amtrak
service to the renovated station in
Mendota, IL—the first long-
distance train to stop there in

26 years.

Also, renovation and restoration of
the historic King Street Station in
Sacramento, CA, began. Ground
was also broken for the $3-million
renovation of Floridas Tampa
Union Station, in parmership with
Amtrak. Amtrak had been oper-
ating from a temporary building
on the property. The first phase of
that project is expected to be
completed in 1998. Amtrak also
completed improvements to 30th
Street Station in Philadelphia, and
Penn Station in New York City.

Coming out to “see the train” was a festive
event for more than 50,000 people.

P
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Safety awareness is an
integral part of maintenance
of way functions.

SAFETY PROGRAMS -

Safety is Amtrak’s® foremost concern. That concern is integrated into all

phases of the railroad’s activities, ensuring that passenger rail in the U.S.

remains one of the safest ways to travel in the world.

Roadway Worker Protection
Many of the safety policies and
programs already in place at Amtrak
were the basis for a new federal safety
program, Roadway Worker
Protection, which became law this
year. Some of the key components of
the program are formal briefings
before the start of shifts; clearly
defined responsibilities of track
workers and watchmen; minimum
clearing times; and a worker’s right to
refuse to work if he or she is not
satisfied with the on-track protection.

Not only did the cooperation
between Amtrak and the
Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way
Employes on these policies serve as a
model for the new regulation, but
the company officially implemented
it well ahead of the federally-
mandated schedule.

Amtrak has seen steady improve-
ment in an already solid safety
record among employees. We
continue working with federal agen-
cies, labor organizations, and
community groups to help us do
even better. Following are just some
examples of the company’s commit-
ment to a safe working and traveling

environment.
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Customer Safety

The safety of our customers is
primary. Amtrak is committed to
providing the safest possible means
of public transportation. During the
year, we worked to improve commu-
nications with our customers,
through more frequent safety
announcements in stations and on
trains, station videos, ticket stuffers,
and on Amtrak’s web site and within
our Travel Planner. And, as always,
we continue to train our employees
in injury prevention measures.

Amtrak’s goal is to reduce customer
and employee injuries by 15 percent
a year over the next five years. If the
injury reduction goals are met over
the next five years, the current
reportable employee injury ratio of
4.2 (injuries per 200,000 person
hours) will drop to 1.9 by the end of
fiscal year 2002. While that will
require the dedication of everyone at
Amtrak, we are certain it is an
achievable goal.
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Of the 510
communities across
the country served

by Amtrak;

130 have no air

service, 113 have

no direct intercity
bus service,
and 35 have
neither air

nor bus.

Joint Labor/Management
Safety Efforts

It has been proven time and again
that the surest route to a continuing
culture of safety awareness is
through management and labor
working together. Safety cannot be
imposed. It has to be developed
together, from the ground up.

In January, Amtrak and representa-
tives of participating labor unions
signed an agreement establishing a
company-wide cooperative program
aimed at fostering the safest possible
environment for employees and
customers. A national council of
representatives from the unions and
the Safety and Labor Relations
departments will formulate corporate
safety policies together.

At many locations around the corpo-
ration, Labor/Management Safety
Teams have been formed. Front-line
employees, supervisors, and labor
union representatives meet regularly
to devise and implement solutions to
our safety challenges. Teams are now
in place in Los Angeles, Oakland,
Sunnyside Yard and Penn Station
(NY), Miami, and New Orleans.
More will be coming.

Because of its outstanding accom-
plishments, the Sunnyside Yard team

was chosen to receive an Amtrak

President’s Award this year. As the
citation said, “The committee
successfully focused the efforts of
labor and management, working
together toward the common goal of
a safer workplace. On this
committee, individual job titles have
no meaning. All members function
as equals with one task in mind—
improving job conditions and work
processes for the benefit of all. By
enlisting the side-by-side cooperation
of labor leaders and management,
the committee achieved unshakable
credibility.”

An effort in the Northeast Corridor
is typical of similar activities that are
being conducted in all three business
units. An NEC Safety Committee,
made up of representatives from each
division, product line, and support
group, was formed this year to
research customer injuries; deter-
mine their causes; identify locations
of frequent occurrences; associate
costs; and draft a program to reduce
those injuries. The draft was revised
by senior managers, as well as
employees from various crafts, and
the final program will be imple-
mented in the 1998 fiscal year.

The Sunnyside Yard Safet
Committee won a 1997
President’s Service & Safe
Award.




It takes an
eight-car

5 passenger train
approximately
113 miles to stop
‘when traveling at

an average speed

of 79 mph.

Industrial Hygiene and
Environmental Control

Amtrak has begun an enhanced
audit inspection program for its facil-
ities, and committed to develop an
Environmental Management System
(EMS) based on the newly developed
International Standards Organization
(1SO) 14001 standards.

Audits — The new audit program will
result in over 240 environmental
compliance audits/inspections in
FY98, and over 250 industrial
hygiene facilities inventories.

IS0 14001 EMS - Late in the year, a
training class was held to orient key
representatives of the three business
units and corporate headquarters on
the environmental control principles
of 1SO 14001, and to lay the founda-
tion needed to set up pilot EMSs.
Additional training classes will be
held in the SBUs over the first six
months of FY98.

Safety and State Partners

When Connecticut, one of our state
partners, was honored for its safety
efforts this year, the state turned and
tipped its hat to Amtrak.
Connecticut’s Department of
Transportation was cited by the
Connecticut Workers” Compensation
Commission (CWCC) for its work
in promoting workplace safety—and
the department publicly gave much
of the credit to Amtrak.

The departments Office of Rail—the
only public agency to ever win a
CWCC award—Ilast year trained
1,200 public- and private-sector
employees in railroad safety, and the
state commuter rail system has not
had a personal injury in more than
six years. Amtrak had provided
presenters and background material
for the training program.

Operation Lifesaver”
Operation Lifesaver, Inc.,
(OLI) is a national, non-
profit organization that
stresses education, engi-
neering and enforcement
in the effort to reduce
collisions, injuries and

fatalities at highway-rail
grade crossings. By the end of
the fiscal year, Amtrak had trained

a total of more than 100 of its own
presenters to help educate the public
about the dangers of highway-rail

Railroad fracks are dangerous. | 2rade crossings,

Trains going in either direction and U”CSp'dSSil’lg

can travel at extremely
fast speeds. along the right-
o nemaas | OFway: We plan

to double that
pool of trained
presenters by the
end of the 1998
fiscal year.

The Operation
Lifesaver®
program works.
Since it was first
established 25
years ago by the

o i

USE ONLY
AUTHORIZED
UNDERPASSES AND

OVERPASSES

Union Pacific
Railroad, the
program has spread to 49 states, and
has helped to reduce crashes and
casualties at highway-rail grade
crossings by 50 percent.
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BUSINESS PRACTICES

Amtrak’s® success depends on more than just our internal efforts. Success

also requires maximum involvement by our stakeholders. Thus, a key

Jocus of the FY97 business plan was on growing the development and

leverage of strategic partnerships.

Partnerships and Promotions

Amtrak continued to focus on devel-
oping targeted partnerships and
promotions to increase ridership and
revenue. Some programs successfully
introduced in FY96 were expanded.

Disney — Based on an extremely effec-
tive “Kids Ride Free” promotion
with Disney’s Aristocats home video
release in FY96, a similar
offer was repeated in
FY97—Amtrak certificates
were included in all 12
million of The Jungle Book
videos sold nationally. The
previous year’s Aristocats
tie-in generated sales of
259,000 tickets and over
$13 million in revenue.

General Mills — Revenue
continued from one of the
most successful promotions
of FY96 continued into
FY97—a 50-percent-off

- companion fare offer printed
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Amtrak® certificates were
included in all 12 million
of The Jungle Book
videos sold.

on over 15 million General
Mills cereal packages. The
national offer, which was
supported by in-store
displays and General Mills and
Amtrak advertising, is expected to
generate 325,000 tickets and $21.3
million in revenue.

AT&T — Amtrak also continued two
large loyalty programs with AT&T:
True Rewards and Universal
Rewards. Members in the True
Rewards program receive a 25-
percent-off companion fare discount
from Amtrak. Sales in the past year
were $1.1 million. Universal Rewards
members earn points toward Amtrak
trips by using participating credit
cards. This program is helping to
attract new users to Amtrak.
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AARP - One of Amtraks key
customer segments is seniors. An
Amtrak advertising program in
AARP’s Modern Maturity magazine
featured offers that generated sales of
nearly one million dollars in FY97.
The partnership was expanded to
include Internet advertising and
travel tips on AARPs web site, and
participation in their national mall
tour program.

Student Advantage” — Amtrak and the
Student Advantage® program
completed their second successful
year as partners in marketing to
college students. This year the
program was extended to junior- and
senior-high school
students.

Members receive
a 15-percent

discount on most
Amtrak rail fares.
The program
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generated revenue of more than $6
million in FY97, a 51-percent
increase over FY96.

Seniors represent a larg
growing customer segm
for Amtrak?
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National and Regional Advertising —
Advertising was continued or
expanded for such promotions as
Air-Rail packages, regional Explore
America Fares, tour packages via
Auto Train? and others. Revenue
generated by the programs increased
significantly. The advertising and
promotion efforts for Amtrak
Intercity’s long-distance trains were
the most extensive in the business
unit’s history. Advertising was carried
in 46 cities, as well as in such
national publications as Parade,
USA Weekend, Readers Digest,

and McCalls.

SmartPass™ Tickets — Monthly and
multi-ride tickets were expanded
greatly this year to cover almost
every city pair in the Northeast
Corridor, and the change was well
received—sales increased 22 percent.

Sports Marketing — This program

was launched with the National
Basketball Associations “Legends
Train,” part of the NBAs 50th
Anniversary celebration. The train
carried legendary players from the
Boston Celtics and New York Knicks,
as well as 700 of their guests.
Promoting its easy, all-weather access
to many of the Northeast’s major
sporting venues, Amtrak attracted
fan and team business with such
football, baseball, and hockey teams
as the Denver Broncos, Philadelphia
Eagles, Baltimore Ravens, New
England Patriots, New York Giants,
New York Jets, Buffalo Bills, New
York Mets, Kansas City Royals, and
Washington Capitols.

Corporate Contracts — Amtrak began a
new marketing program aimed at
travel managers within the New
York-Washington corridor. Targeted
at accounts currently with high air
shuttle usage and low Metroliner®
usage, it offers corporate discount
contracts. The program resulted in
28 new contracts in FY97, repre-
senting a 700-percent boost in
contract ridership.

Special Events and Packages —
Special Rail Days were held for the
Northeast Corridors Keystone and
Virginian services; the promotions
featured half-off Saturdays...Niche-
market tour packages were devel-
oped with the Niagara Falls Casino
and for an Adirondack “Rail/Sail”
program...A “Kids-Ride-Free”
program was repeated this summer
by Amtrak California, generating an
additional $12 million in revenue.

The NEC and the New York Racing
Association ran a joint promotion
for the summer racing season at
Saratoga, resulting in a 111-percent
increase in ridership on the special
Saturday trains... Amtrak Wests®
“1-2-FREE!"” program linked promo-
tions for the major cities in the
region and generated $3.9 million
in revenue... The “Romance on the
Coast” promotion for the Coast
Starlight resulted in 2,500 additional
first-class bookings.

Increased Train Service

Although fiscal pressures have
required reductions of service in this
past year and others, ridership
improvements enabled Amtrak to
expand or improve some service

in 1997.

For instance, the Three Rivers® service
between Pittsburgh and Chicago was
expanded, and a third Florida train,
the Silver Palm, made its debut this
year. Daily service returned on the
Empire Builder, Chicago-Seattle/
Portland; the California Zephyr,
Chicago-Oakland/San Francisco;

and the City of New Orleans,
Chicago-New Orleans.

An improved, premium-class
overnight train was launched in the
Northeast Corridor this summer.
The Twilight Shoreliner extended
service from Boston all the way to
Newport News, VA. The new train
offers enhanced services and on-
board amenities, including new
Viewliner® sleeper equipment;
upgraded menus; a larger on-board

TAKE A FREE
TRAIN HOME
e
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KEYSTONE RAIL DAYS
JUNE 21 & 22

June 21 & 22 is a great time to leave your car and take
the train because during Keystone Rail Days, you can
travel anywhere from Harrishurg to Philadelphia and your
retum tnp is free. As always, fares for kids, ages 2-15, are
half off.

AN CEYSTONE SERVICE
— L

For infarmation, visit the Keystone web site at
ittp:/ hwww. microserve.net/amirakpa or
call Amirak at 1-800-USA-RAIL. Tickets can be purchased

from Amirak ticket offices or your travel agent.
— v
FARE CONDITIONS: Rl Days free retur Ncket offer is vabd only
for travel on June 21 and June 22, 1997 Valid for trave twees

Philaceiphia, P4, and Harristrg, PA, and intermediste statiors oréy.
Initial rouns) tip travel purchase required fur free rofurm. Other
rustrictions may sgply.

Promotions build ridership.

LSA Donna Bonanno prepares
to serve a customer aboard the
new Twilight Shoreliner.
Customer service and attention
to their needs is the hallmark
of the new train.



PENN STATION

Station Improvements m Service Enhancements

SHORELINER
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crew for more personal service; and a
crew that is even more attuned to
passenger needs, thanks to enhanced
customer services training. Media
coverage generated by the train, plus
intensive marketing efforts, helped
improve ridership on this route, and
on all Virginia trains.

Amtrak also continued its aggressive
efforts to make the entire train-travel
experience more comfortable by
focusing on improvements to its own
stations. As just one example, “Penn
Station Pride,” a year-long effort by a
labor-management partnership to
create a cleaner, safer Penn Station in
New York, won praise from

customers.

State Relations

Amtrak enjoys successful partner-
ships with the transportation depart-
ments of its 11 partner states. State
investment in intercity rail has
grown over the last several years and
will become increasingly more
important as highway and airway
systems reach capacity.

This year, Amtrak and state govern-
ments continued to appeal to
Congress that states be allowed the
flexibility to choose the best use of
their federal transportation funds.
Current law prevents the funds from
being spent on intercity rail, but
allows spending on highways,
airports, mass transit and commuter
rail, including light rail.

In addition to providing operating
support, more states are now using
their own funds to invest in rail
infrastructure improvements, such as
station construction and restoration,
maintenance facilities, marketing
programs, and the purchase of
passenger rail equipment.

For example, this year Washington
made a $20-million investment in

the completion of design for the
innovative European-style Talgo
trains destined for Pacific Northwest
Corridor service. California’s multi-
million-dollar investment in infra-
structure and stations enabled
Amtrak to deliver service to four
new cities during the year. Oregon’s
commitment of $4 million in state
lottery funds allowed continuation of
the Portland-Eugene section of the
Cascadia.

After devoted work by state and local
government representatives, state
legislators, and members of the
congressional delegation, Texas
provided the loan needed to
continue the San Antonio-St. Louis
portion of the Texas Eagle. The
segment had been scheduled for
discontinuation.

In Illinois, Amtrak reached a prece-
dent-setting three-year agreement
that features a fixed price, plus
incentives based on customer satis-
faction and on-time performance
standards. For more than 25 years,
the state has been a partner with
Amtrak, which operates the Illini and
the Illinois Zephyr

Also, thanks to state support, New
York City and Rutland, VT, were
linked by rail for the first time in 40
years with the debut of the Ethan
Allen Express. The quick connection
with ski slopes in the state,
promoted through a partnership
with local ski resorts, attracted rider-
ship quickly.

In Wisconsin, Amtrak and the state
agreed on a three-year contract to
continue daily state-supported
Hiawatha Service between Chicago
and Milwaukee. The contract
commits Amtrak to meeting a variety
of performance goals, including
specific customer approval ratings,
plus on-time performance, employee
courtesy, and equipment cleanliness
levels.

Amtrak and the state of Michigan
continued to work together on infra-
structure improvements to reduce
travel times on the Detroit-Chicago

In New York Ci
alone, traffic
planners have
estimated tha
Amtrak’® servii
capacity elimi
nates the need |
20 additional
highway lanes
and 10 new
tunnels under tl

Hudson River




State partnerships
have enabled Amtrak® to
upgrade facilities.

corridor. When the entire project is

completed, the downtown-to-down-
town trip will be reduced by two
hours, or almost 40 percent.

Infrastructure Projects — Amtrak and
NJ TRANSIT signed a landmark joint
funding agreement that will provide
$250 million for infrastructure
investments within the New Jersey
segment of the Northeast Corridor—
benefitting both NJ TRANSIT
commuters and Amtrak passengers.
Similar agreements have been
reached with Delaware and
Maryland, and Amtrak is seeking to
arrange these types of capital agree-
ments throughout the corridor.

Aided by a grant from the state of
Delaware, the company began
construction of a $3.5-million ware-
house at Bear, DE. The new facility is
part of a multi-year program to
upgrade the Delaware maintenance
shops, and to make Amtrak more
competitive for insourcing. Similarly,
the state of Indiana committed
almost $1 million for building
repairs at Beech Grove. That allowed
Amtrak to fund an upgrading of the
Beech Grove wheel shop, and thus
retain up to 24 jobs that would have
been relocated to Wilmington.

Pennsylvania announced a
$1.2-million state investment in
Philadelphia’s 30th Street Station.
The work will not only increase the
efficiency of the NEC headquarters,
but it will also help prepare the
station for High-Speed Rail.

Commuter Contracts

Amtrak is a partner in the operation
of some of the nation’s largest daily
commuter rail services, such as the
Massachusetts Bay Transportation
Authority (MBTA) in the Boston area.

The company operates seven
services, with 708 trains carrying
174,000 passengers daily. In addi-
tion, four large commuter services
operate on Amtrak’s tracks or use its
facilities. Those services operate
1,407 trains daily, carrying 357,000
passengers.

Amtrak’s relationship with the MBTA
represents its largest commuter
contract, one which entered its 10th
year in FY97. Also this year, Amtrak
and the MBTA reopened the Old
Colony line, connecting Boston with
more than two dozen suburban
stations. The line had not seen rail
service for nearly 40 years.

Three services operated by Amtrak
for the state of California alone carry
more than 50,000 passengers every
weekday: Caltrain, serving the San
Francisco Bay area, had a 10-percent
ridership increase and a 99.1-percent
on-time performance in FY97. The
Coaster, Amtrak West’s® newest
commuter contract train, began in
1995 with 60 trains per week serving
San Diego and is now up to 102. It
ended the fiscal year with a 23-
percent ridership increase, and 99-
percent on-time performance.

BT COASTERM !

Caltrain rolls out of
San Francisco.

On a typical
cross-country
journey, the snack
bar in the lounge
car of the Sunset
Limited will sell
314 sandwiches,
215 cans of Pepsi,
423 cups of coffee
and 100 bags of

potato chips.
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During this fiscal year, the Southern
California Regional Rail Authority
(SCRRA) prequalified Amtrak as the
exclusive bidder to continue opera-
tion of Metrolink trains during the
contract period beginning July 1,
1998. The authority cited Amtrak’s
safety and service record, and the
extensive experience of its agreement-
covered and management workforce
as principal factors in its decision.

Amtrak will also be bidding to retain
Metrolink’s equipment maintenance
contract. To increase Amtrak’s
competitiveness, the Joint Council of
Carmen, Helpers, Coach Cleaners
and Apprentices signed an agreement
with the company, modifying work
rules. The changes provide more
flexibility in job performance.

The operations contracts with both
Metrolink and Caltrain include pre-set
fines for failure to meet performance
standards, and incentives for exceeding
expectations. During the year, Amtrak
and its workforce were able to mini-
mize fines and maintain high quality
service, both of which contributed to
the company’s bottom line.

Another state partner, Maryland Rail
Commuter (MARC), benefitted from
Amtrak’s procurement structure for
High-Speed Rail locomotives.
Because of Amtrak’s large order with
the manufacturer, MARC was able to
order similar locomotives for its own
use. Through a recently updated
service contract between Amtrak and
the commuter agency, the locomo-
tives will be maintained by Amtrak
employees.

Relationships with Freights
Amtrak signed new operating agree-
ments with CSX Transportation,
Norfolk Southern, the Florida
Department of Transportation, and
the Vermont Railway.

This year was not a good one for on-
time performance by the contract
carriers. Only five out of the 13 rail-
roads improved their performance
from the previous year, and only two
reached their performance goals. For

the carriers whose track Amtrak uses
for long-distance trains, just one out
of eight showed improvement. The
remainder experienced an average
decrease of 3.2 percent. Amtrak will
continue to work with the railroads
to emphasize the importance of on-
time performance in the success of
intercity passenger service.

Mail and Express

As directed by both Congress and
the White House, Amtrak has been
pursuing means of reaching oper-
ating support self-sufficiency. In
addition to working toward greater
operating efficiency, increased
mechanical reliability, and consis-
tently high customer satisfaction
levels, a key to the effort will be
expansion of the railroad’s mail and
express business.

During this year, the company
contracted for the acquisition of 250
box cars and 283 RoadRailers? Most
of the equipment has been delivered,
with the remainder to follow during
the first half of fiscal year 1998.

The box cars are designed for
carrying baggage, mail, and express
at speeds up to 90 mph, to be
compatible with Amtrak passenger
trains. Similarly, RoadRailers are
designed to operate on both rails and
highways, and are well-suited for
dock-to-dock service.

Non-Passenger Revenue

In addition to its ongoing commit-
ment to increasing mail and express
business, Amtrak continued to
develop means of leveraging its
resources and creativity in building

more non-passenger revenue.

Insourcing — In June, Amtrak success-
fully competed with outside busi-
nesses and won a contract to repair a
MARC cab control car, a contract that
was later expanded after a follow-up
competition. Late in the summer,
Amtrak was an active competitor for
a contract to overhaul 116 Comet
cars for NJ TRANSIT. The prepara-
tion for a bid of this magnitude
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provided valuable experience that
will be useful in future efforts.

Right-of-way leasing — Amtrak is
pursuing revenue-growth opportuni-
ties by permitting private businesses
to string cable on its right of way,
and to install cellular phone relays.
Amtrak has also been contracted to
activate cables that were installed in
an earlier project but have been
dormant.

Real estate management — Substantial
changes have been made in Amtrak’s
management agreements, and stan-
dard forms now govern every retail
lease on company property.
Standards and terms are consistent,
and both local and national retail
management firms can compete to
provide services in the larger
stations.

Innovative equipment utilization — A
first this year for Amtrak was
“wrapped” cars. Shrink-wrap adver-
tising on a train that traveled from
New York City to Philadelphia on
Valentines Day created the world’s
largest “cheesecake” for Philadelphia
Brand Cream Cheese. A San Diegan

R

passenger car was wrapped to
promote the “Wheel of Fortune” TV
show. Finally, as the year ended,
wraps were being completed to high-
light such San Diego attractions as
Sea World, the San Diego Zoo, and
the Wild Animal Park... Amtrak facil-

ities and equipment were also leased

for use in several movies, TV series
and advertisements.

Metroliner® Service

Metroliner® Service broke all rider-
ship records this year. Final ridership
for the year was 2,081,326, an
increase of nearly 20,000 over the
previous record.

Also this year, Metroliner® Service
revenues exceeded expenses,
allowing the service to help support
other Amtrak operations. That
accomplishment was the result of
attention to customers’ needs, and
the delivery of quality service. In
recognition of that feat, the American
Railroad Conference and Progressive
Railroading magazine honored
Metroliner® Service with its produc-
tivity award for passenger service.

Amtrak appeared on MTV5s “Real
World” when the cast and crew of
the popular show traveled with us
between Boston and Philadelphia
for the national Volunteer Summit
in April.

The Adirandack was highlighted on
the PBS series “America’s Scenic
Rail Journeys” in an episode
featuring David Hyde Pierce of
NBC hit show, “Frasier.” Redesign
of the service also earned the
Adirondack the Travel Industry
Association’s top honor, an
Odyssey Award, in the Cultural
Heritage category.

Amtrak Intercity won three Gold
Awards in advertising and sales
promotion at the 40th Annual
Meeting of Hospitality Sales and
Marketing Association
International.

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

NEC customer notification mate-
rials for a 1996 timetable change
in the Northeast Corridor won a
Silver Award, and the business
unit’s customer newsletter
(“Working on the Railroad”) won
a Bronze Award in the 10th
anniversary of the International

Mercury Awards, an international
competition honoring excellence
in communications.

Amtrak won a Building Excellence
Award for restoration of
Philadelphia’s 30th Street Station,
and for the critical importance the
restoration has in advancing a
positive view of the city. The
award was given by Commerce
Bank and the Philadelphia
Business Journal.

The NEC’s award-winning
customer newsletter.
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— PRESIDENT'S SERVICE & SAFETY AWARDS ——

| The President’s Service & Safety Awards Program is the highest
employee recognition at Amtrak® The program honors employees who

have made outstanding contributions to the corporation, exhibited

President's
Service & Safety
Awards

exemplary work performance, and leadership.

Achievement

Kurt G. Laird
General Manager, Seattle, WA

Ronald M. Truitt
Foreman 111, Washington, D.C.

Robert S. Vandergriff
Carman/Mechanical Quality
Inspector, Beech Grove, IN

Nelson Veliz
Machinist, Los Angeles, CA

Sustained Excellence

David A. Brooks Sr.
Conductor/UTU Local Chairman,
Washington, D.C.

Kristina L. Economos
Manager, Chicago, 1L

Paul M. Hanson
Foreman II, Boston, MA

Patricia Hughes and Melodie Salter
Station Agents, Glacier Park, MT

Charles B. Roebuck 111
Administrative Chief, Los Angeles, CA

Valor

Cristy Pacheco
Conductor, Los Angeles, CA

In Memory of

Aaron Coleman King Jr.
Trackman/Watchman, Secaucus, NJ

Safety Achievement

Dennis M. Conlan
Baggageman, Philadelphia, PA

Environmental Achievement

Frank P. Claar
Foreman 111, Wilmington, DE

Champion of the Rails

Ruth Bascom
Former Mayor of Eugene, OR

Michael L. Taylor
Ticket Agent, Charleston, SC

Partners in Performance Team
Pittsburgh, PA

Amtrak: James H. Bruder, Randell G.
Jomes, James H. Kruhm, Roy E. Noel
Jr., Stephen M. Planey, Donna M.
Pollin Conrail: Joseph A. Bishop,
Richard A. Chambers, Ronald J.
Hardesty, Max Solomon 11, Steve M.
Timko Jr., Robert T. Woodruff

The Texas Eagle Coalition

Mayor Kenneth Barr, Fort Worth, TX;

Mayor Celia Boswell, Mineola, TX;
Mayor Audrey Kariel, Marshall, TX;
Mercy Rushing, Mineola, TX;
Barbara Musgraves, Mineola, TX;
Natalie Rabicoff, Longview, TX

State Partner

The Honorable Howard Dean
Governor, Vermont

Safety Committee of the Year

Sunnyside Yard Safety Committee
Sunnyside, NY

Charles Luna Award

Glenn T. Burgess
Engineer, Chicago, IL

President’s Safety Contest
Winners
Northeast Corridor SBU

Amtrak Intercity Midwest
Division, Reservations and
Sales Office

AMTRAK"
CORPORATE
VALUES

Customers
They come first.

Employees
The strength of
our product.

Excellence

A commitment to%
safety and quality
|

Integrity
Truth even whenjj
it hurts. |

Trains
Our passion.



Strategic Plan

The Strategic Business Plan describes
how Amtrak expects to achieve its
short- and long-term goals, given its
operating and capital resources.
Currently, Amtrak is operating on a
“glidepath™ of federal support that is
planned to enable operating self-
sufficiency in 2002. This plan was
adopted by Amtraks Board of
Directors in December 1994. It

was predicated on:

B Adequate federal operating support-
For the period 1995 through 1997,
the operating glidepath was under-
[unded by a total of $138.5 million.

B A predictable and adequate capital
fund— Subsequent to the end of FY97,
federal legislation was passed that
provided Amtrak access to $2.3
billion to fund capital expenditure
needs (after congressionally-required
payments to states without Amtrak
service, Amtrak will actually have use
of $2.1 billion). This funding signifi-
cantly improves Amtraks ability to
achieve its capital goals in the near
term; however, it is only a portion of
what Amtrak needs to reach operating
self-sufficiency and it does not
address Amtrak’s longer-term need for
a dedicated capital funding source.

§ The enactment of legislation to allow
Amtrak to behave in a commercially
oriented, business-like manner—
Included in that same legislation
were provisions for repealing the
requirement that Amtrak operate a
federally-mandated basic route
system for passenger service; autho-
rization for Amtrak to negotiate
changes in how it contracts out
certain labor functions; and signifi-
cant liability reforms.

B Amtrak’s continued operation as a
customer-focused, market-responsive
company, accompanied by substantially
increased productivity, lower costs, and
increased revenue— Amtrak made
dramatic changes for the better in
FY95, FY96, and FY97, although
both FY96 and FY97 performance
did not achieve all planned goals.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANGE
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Progress to Date

Amtrak has remained focused on its
bottom-line goals. The company has
a decentralized corporate structure
that emphasizes greater market
awareness, competitiveness, and
customer service. It has eliminated a
significant amount of cost through a
rationalized commercial network,
improved equipment utilization, and
re-engineered back-office functions,
while increasing revenues.

Internal actions for the period 1995-
1997 have closed the original
$5-billion gap projected between
1995 and 2002 by $3.6 billion,
despite the operating glidepath
underfunding of $138.5 million.
During this period, Amtrak has also
initiated two new capital programs,
High-Speed Rail and an Express pilot
program, which are expected to
provide over $1 billion net improve-
ment to the company’s bottom line
over the 1998-2003 period.

1997 Highlights

Highlights in FY97 included:

B Passenger-related revenue increased
7.2 percent, compared to FY96, to
over $1 billion, as a result of a ticket
yield increase of 5.3 percent and a
ridership increase of 2.7 percent.

B Amtrak began the year having been
named the “most improved in
customer service” among American
transportation organizations by
Knowledge Exchange, a California-
based financial analysis and
publishing firm.

B On-time performance, a key driver
of the company’s financial perfor-
mance because of its critical impor-
tance to passengers, rose to 74.4
percent in FY97, from 71.0 percent
in FY96.

B During FYO7 Amtrak continued to
invest in the High-Speed Rail
program and initiated an Express
pilot program.

If Amtrak® were
an airline carrying
the same number
of passengers,
it would be the
third largest airline

in the U.S.



B Amtrak also continued its compre-
hensive corporate effort to re-engi-
neer business processes to increase
efficiency across the corporation—
the Crossing 2002 program.

Crossing 2002
Crossing 2002, one of Amtrak’s key

programs aimed at meeting the
congressional target of eliminating
federal operating support by 2002,
moved from the planning phase into
the implementation phase during
FY97.

The program’s goal is to identify,
prioritize and redesign activities that
offer the greatest potential for quality
improvement and cost savings, while
maintaining or improving customer
service.

Thirteen design teams were launched
during the year, focusing on issues
ranging from marketing, to
manpower allocation, to equipment
maintenance and utilization. These
teams, drawing on the wisdom and
experience of individuals throughout
the company, analyzed in detail some
of the most fundamental activities
required for Amtrak to conduct its
business.

One of the key systems developed
through the Crossing 2002 program
is the cost of quality measure.
Through this measurement system,
Amtrak is evaluating the quality of
its activities by keeping track of
money spent ensuring high-quality
work, and the money lost when fail-
ures occur. The system is now in
place throughout the company, and a
baseline cost-of-quality figure has
been established. As a part of the
FY98 business plan, specific actions
have been developed which are
projected to reduce the cost of
quality through the elimination of
$18.2 million in failure costs.

1997 Performance
The 1997 Strategic Business Plan

approved by the board was over-
ridden by the Omnibus Consolidated
Appropriations Act approved by
Congress in early October 1996. This
legislation mandated that Amtrak
continue to operate six routes for an
additional six months beyond that
which was planned. The additional
$22.5 million provided under the
Act did not cover the full $36.0
million cost of the service continua-
tion. That resulted in an increase
from the original plan’s budget result
deficit of $30.8 million, to a budget
result deficit of $44.3 million.

The actual budget result deficit in
FY97 of $70.4 million, although not
at plan levels, still reflected signifi-
cant improvement. The 1997 plan
included actions which would have’
reduced the projected baseline
budget result deficit ($243.5 million)
by $212.7 million. Actual results
reflected $173.1 million of net
improvements, not to plan level, but
still a significant achievement.

The most significant events affecting
performance for the period included:

B Weather related events: Hurricane
Fran stopped service for the Auto
Train? the Silver Service and the
Crescent for several weeks and
caused serious train delays for
months as a result of damage to the
infrastructure. Severe weather condi-
tions on the West Coast disrupted
service on the Coast Starlight.
Midwest floods curtailed the Empire
Builder route through North Dakota
for weeks. The full FY97 impact
across the corporation was $14
million in unanticipated weather

COsls.

B Planned savings of $23 million in
power costs were not realized in the
period.



B During FY97, two one-time events,

the sale of property in Providence,
RI, and the sales of telecommunica-
tions rights in the Northeast
Corridor, resulted in improvements
of $54 million to the bottom line,
which in part offset plan-action
shortfalls.

Future Outlook

Amtrak’s business portfolio is struc-
tured to enable the company to
cross-subsidize the public aspect of
the business with the revenues
generated by high-dollar-return
programs, such as High-Speed Rail
and the Express pilot program.
Amtrak’s Strategic Business Plan
addresses how the portfolio of busi-
ness lines must be managed and

focused to give Amtrak an under-
standable national brand. This has
been essential in Amtrak’s selection
and balancing of strategies for FY98.

Factors critical to the achievement of
Amtrak’s FY98 strategic plan are:

B The $2.3-billion capital fund,
which is vital to Amtrak’s ability to
pursue major initiatives that would
enable operating self-sufficiency, and
the restoration of a state of good
repair in its core business.

B The success of the Express pilot
program.

B The successful balancing of cost
reductions with the need to support
growth in ridership.

A Concept 2000 cafe car on the
Metroliner* Service.



—— THE FUTURE OF PASSENGER RAIL ———

The future of passenger rail in the United States, as guided by Amtrak’s®
Strategic Business Plan, will be reflected in a vibrant national network of
trains supported by state partnerships, federal capital investment, and

the revenues from lucrative services such as High-Speed Rail and the

express initiative.

The High-Speed Rail revolution
begins in late 1999.

Amtrak’s High-Speed Rail (HSR) is
on track to debut in late 1999, revo-
lutionizing train travel in the critical
Washington, D.C.-Boston corridor. It
will also help preserve the national
passenger rail system by providing
more than $150 million annually for
reinvestment in other routes.

Built largely in this country by
American workers, the innovative
trainsets are being custom designed to
meet the specific and extensively-
researched expectations of Northeast
Corridor travelers, and also 1o provide
the optimum working conditions
suggested by Amtrak employees.

This year Amtrak reached an impor-
tant milestone in bringing HSR on
line by completing site preparation for
a facility to maintain the new high-
speed trains. On Aug. 1, four months
ahead of schedule, the company’s
7ashington, D.C., Ivy City

Maintenance Yard was readied to
permit construction of a new facility.
Not only was the preparation
completed ahead of schedule, it was
completed injury-free and under
budget.

Also, due to careful coordination,
trains operated through the area
without delays during the year-long
project. Finally, by delivering the site
ahead of schedule, Amtrak earned a
monetary credit in its contract with
the consortium of Bombardier and
GEC ALSTHOM, which is building
the maintenance facility and the fleet
of up to 18 high-speed trains.

Preparation for HSR continued
throughout the corridor. Thanks to
the cooperation of freight companies
and commuter agencies Amtrak was
able to maintain passenger service
while electrification work progressed.
Detailed track plans ensured that
access to freight sidings was available
for business deliveries carried by rail,
and that the least amount of track was
occupied by construction when
comimuters were in motion.

When it debuts
in 1999, Amtraki
High-Speed Rail
will slash the
Washington, D.C
— New York City
trip to two hours
45 minutes,
and the New
York— Boston
segment to just

three hours.



Artist’ rendering of the
Bistro car in the new
Talgo train.

Not only was the work of HSR
evident on the tracks and yards of

the corridor this year, but it even got
into Harvard. Amtrak was named a
semifinalist in the prestigious
Innovations in American
Government Awards, given by the
Ford Foundation and Harvard’s John
E Kennedy School of Government.

The company was recognized for its
contract with Bombardier and GEC
ALSTHOM to build the trainsets, and
to maintain them for up to 20 years
at a fixed annual price. The innova-
tive approach was Amtrak’s creative
solution to the challenge of bringing
world-class, high-speed train service
to America by the end of the century,
while completing the biggest restruc-
turing in Amtrak’s history.

In the coming year, Amtrak will
unveil the HSR service brand.
Production will begin on coaches,
power cars, bistro cars, and high-
horsepower locomotives; track work
will continue; and the HSR test track
in Pueblo, CO, will be prepared for
testing of the new trainsets.

Public-Private Partnership

In just one example of working with
state partners to expand train
service, Amtrak worked with state

and federal officials, as well as repre-
sentatives of the Nevada gaming
community, to restore service
between Southern California and Las
Vegas through a unique public-
private partnership.

Nearly half the visitors to Las Vegas ‘
originate in Southern California,
according to the Las Vegas

Convention and Visitor’s Authority,

and the gaming industry recognizes

that the highways and airways '
linking Los Angeles and Las Vegas

are at capacity. They now view rail as

an important alternative for bringing !
visitors to their properties. |

If public and private resources are
identified, Amtrak anticipates daily
service between Los Angeles and Las
Vegas by the end of 1998, using a
new Talgo train and F59 locomotives.

Capital Funding

After many hours of congressional
testimony and floor debates, the
1997 fiscal year had just ended when

goal, securing an infusion of capital

Amtrak achieved its top legislative ‘
|
funding. !

The $2.3-billion fund, which is
payable over the next two years, is a
significant first step toward the $4
billion in federal capital investment
that Amtrak will require to reach
operational self-sufficiency.

A broad coalition of employees, state
and local partners, vendors, environ-
mental organizations, and customers
worked together to convince
Congress and the administration that
this capital is critical to the future of
viable intercity passenger rail service
in the United States.

Amtrak hopes to build upon this
success in the second session of the
105th Congress by vigorously
pursuing the remainder of the neces-
sary capital funding.

In another strong sign of national
support for intercity passenger rail,
the five-year reauthorization of
Amtrak approved by Congress also
reforms the company’s operations
and enables it to act more like a
business. \

Government
support of
passenger rail
service is virtually
universal. On a
per-capita basis,
Germany spends
nearly 70 times
what the U.S.

does.



—— MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ——

of Results of Operations and Financial Conditions

Results of Operations

Amtrak reported a 1997 net loss of
$761.9 million compared with a
1996 net loss of $763.6 million.

This result reflects a 7.6% increase in
total revenues to $1,673.7 million in
1997 compared to $1,554.8 million
in 1996. Gains in passenger related,
other core and commuter revenues
were primarily responsible for this
improvement. Graph A displays
Amtrak’s financial performance from
1988 to 1997.

FINANGIAL PERFORM

(Millions of dollars)

Fiscal Years 1988-1997

Passenger-related
ANCE revenues increased
7.2% to over $1 billion
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Note 1: FY94 expenses exclude $243.8
million in one-time charges.

BEEE Revenue

million in 1996 as a
result of a ticket yield
increase of 5.3% and
ridership increase of
2.7%. Ridership
increased to 20.2
million compared to
19.7 million in the
prior year. Other core

Graph A

revenues increased as a result of the
sales of telecommunication rights
and property in the northeast
corridor and the sale of an interest in
an insurance company.

Total expenses increased 5.1% to
$2,435.6 million in 1997 versus
$2,318.4 million in 1996. This
primarily reflected higher salaries,
wages and benefits; train operations
expenses; and interest expense.
Expenses related to maintenance-of-
way goods and advertising and sales
decreased. More detail is provided
for revenues and expenses further in
the discussion.

In 1997 and 1996 Amtrak received
$222.5 million and $285 million in
federal operating grants, respectively,
and $142 million and $120 million of
federal payments for excess manda-
tory RRTA expenses, respectively.
These contributions are in addition
to the revenues reported in the finan-
cial statements. The contributions

can be seen on the consolidated state-
ments of cash flows and statements
of changes in capitalization.

In 1994 Congress and the
Administration directed Amtrak to
develop a strategy to achieve oper-
ating self-sufficiency by the year
2002. Accordingly, in December
1994, Amtrak’s Board of Directors
adopted a strategic and business plan
to significantly reduce federal oper-
ating grants. Results in 1995
substantially were on track with the
strategic plan. Results in 1997 and
1996, however, did not meet plan
expectations by $26.1 million and
$82.2 million, respectively. For these
two years Amtrak had shortfalls in
operating grants compared to the
strategic and business plan above
totaling $138.5 million.

The 1997 results included both
revenue and cost saving plan actions
which were not achieved, offset by
new actions in the year which had
not been anticipated, primarily the
sale of telecommunication rights and
property in the northeast corridor.
Short-term borrowings under
Amtraks lines of credit at the end of
1997 were $75 million compared to
planned borrowings of $57.6 million.

Subsequent to fiscal year end, federal
legislation was passed that (i)
provides Amtrak access to $2.1
billion to fund capital expenditure
needs, (ii) authorizes significant
reforms to Amtrak operations, (iii)
specifies a goal of operating self-
sufficiency in the next five years, and
(iv) establishes new and additional
oversight processes. While the
combination of these events are
essential elements in Amtrak’s future
viability, Amtrak still has many
significant challenges to reach oper-
ating self-sufficiency and guarantee
its survival into the future. See
further discussion under Financial
Condition and Liquidity.




Revenues

Graph B displays the sources of
Amtrak revenue in 1997.

Passenger-related revenue (including
transportation, food and beverage
revenue and state contributions)

$164.8

Reimbursable
$91.1

Other
 Transportation
E s

Commuter
$241.6
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increased by 7.2% to
$1,034.0 million in 1997
from $964.9 million in
1996. The product lines
with the most significant
revenue growth were
Amtrak Intercity’s
Atlantic Coast, Western,
Gulf Coast and Auto
Train®; NEC’s Metroliner®
NortheastDirect® and
Empire; and Amtrak
Weslts® Coast Starlight

Graph B

and California Corridor. The revenue
improvement reflected increases in
ridership (2.7%), passenger miles
(2.3%), seat miles (1.9%), and ticket
yield (5.3%).

The state contributions increased
9.2% to $70.1 million in 1997 from
$64.2 million in 1996. These state
subsidies vary inversely with
Amtrak’s performance as these
payments are a partial reimburse-
ment, tied to the level of Amtrak
unrecovered costs. The favorable
variance between 1997 and 1996
resulted from higher levels of contri-
butions from states. Subsidies were
higher from the states of California,
Missouri, New York, North Carolina,
Oregon, Vermont and Washington.

Other core revenues (from commuter
fees, freight railroad access fees, real
estate operations and development,
mail, baggage and express, interest
and other) increased 23.7% to
$307.0 million in 1997 from $248.1
million in 1996. This increase is
principally the result of sales of
telecommunication rights ($48.0
million), property ($21.3 million)
and an insurance company’s stock
($8.6 million).

Mail revenue also increased 5.8%, to
$66.7 million in 1997 from $63.1
million in 1996. This growth largely

reflects new business with the U.S.
Postal Service as a result of holiday
mail, heavier shipping demand in
certain lanes and the UPS strike.

Express revenue was level over the
two years. In the latter part of 1997,
Amtrak initiated an express pilot
project. Although the impact on
1997 was not material, this project is
expected to have a very positive
impact in 1998. Amtrak has taken
delivery of the equipment to support
this initiative. Currently, Amtrak is
awaiting a ruling by the Surface
Transportation Board to determine
restrictions on this project, if any.

Partially offsetting the increases above
was a decrease in fees for use of
Amtraks right-of-way by commuter
rail companies, which totaled $72.5
million in 1997 versus $84.4 million
in 1996. Revenue in 1996 included
access fees from the Massachusetts
Bay Transportation Authority (MBTA)
which are included in their commuter
operating revenue in 1997.

Freight railroad access fees also
decreased 13.3% to $15.7 million
in 1997 from $18.1 million in 1996.
This decrease was due principally
to decreased net activity by certain
freight railroads on Amtrak-owned
rail.

Interest income decreased to $3.9
million in 1997 from $4.9 million in
1996 reflecting primarily a decrease
in average cash balances.

The $9.2 million remaining balance
of safe harbor revenue from the 1981
sale of tax benefits associated with
certain qualified assets was recorded
in 1996.

Commuter operating revenue increased
3.1% to $241.6 million in 1997 from
$234.4 million in 1996. The increase
primarily reflected higher revenue
from Massachusetts Bay
Transportation Authority (MBTA) as
a result of the inclusion of access fees
in the commuter revenue beginning
in 1997. This revenue was included
in other core revenue in 1996. In

m




addition, 1996 included revenue from
Maryland Area Rail Commuter Service
related to prior periods and to a one
time contribution.

Reimbursable revenues decreased
15.3% to $91.1 million in 1997 from
$107.5 million in 1996. This
decrease primarily reflects lower
maintenance of way reimbursable
revenue due to reduced funding

levels by Long Island Rail Road, New

Jersey Transit, New York City and
Maryland DOT involving construc-
tion work.

Expenses
Graph C displays the categories of

expense for Amtrak in 1997.

Salaries, wages, and benefits increased
5.0% to $1,298.5 million in 1997
from $1,236.3 million in 1996.
During 1997 there was a 1.7%
increase in the workforce. Employee

Other $53.7

EXPENSE CATEGORIES

(Total $2,436 Million)

Salaries, Wages,
& Benefits

$1,298.5

MOW Goods
& Services $45.8

Depreciation

Advertising
& Sales $97.9

benefits expenses
increased 6.5% primarily
reflecting higher Railroad
Retirement and other
payroll taxes along with
increased union health

ile and welfare benefit costs.

Interest $75.8

Facility & Also, subsequent to year
Office Related
$187.1 end 1997, Amtrak
Casualty &

approved and the
Brotherhood of
Maintenance of Way
Employes (BMWE) rati-

Accident Claims

Graph C

fied an agreement which provided
for wage increases for the period July
1995 through December 1999, to be
paid over the next three years. A
liability for the retroactive portion of
this increase is included in the 1997
Consolidated Balance Sheet. This
agreement also includes certain work
rule changes and contingencies
related to Amtrak’s funding. Amtrak
has labor agreements with 12 other
labor unions which are up for rene-
gotiation. While it is possible these
unions will enter into negotiations to
secure agreements similar to that of

=

the BMWE, any amounts related to
such agreements cannot be reason-
ably estimated.

Non-labor train operations expenses
increased 14.0% to $365.4 million in
1997 from $320.5 million in 1996.
These expenses include fuel and
electric power along with mainte-
nance of equipment and food, bever-
ages and supplies to support on
board services, all of which reflected
increases in the period.

Facility and office costs increased
3.2% to $187.1 million in 1997 from
$181.3 million in 1996 as a result of
higher building maintenance and
communication costs.

Expenses related to maintenance-of-way
goods and services decreased 22.9%
to $45.8 million in 1997 from $59.4
million in 1996. The decrease is
associated with work performed by
Amtrak for other parties.

Advertising and sales costs decreased
9.9% to $97.9 million in 1997 from
$108.6 million in 1996, primarily
reflecting lower advertising expenses.

Casualty and accident claims expense
increased 5.8% to $69.6 million in
1997 from $65.8 million in 1996.
This increase results from higher
costs of incidents.

Interest expense increased 25.9% to
$75.8 million in 1997 from $60.2
million in 1996, primarily as a result
of increased borrowings related to
rolling stock equipment.

Depreciation and amortization expense
increased 1.6% to $241.8 million in
1997 from $238.0 million in 1996,

principally due to purchases of

equipment.

Other expenses increased to $53.7
million in 1997 from $48.3 million
in 1996. This increase reflects in part
higher costs related to computer
services.




Financial Condition and Liquidity
At September 30, 1997, Amtrak had
cash and cash equivalents of $36.4
million. The working capital ratio
decreased to .42 in 1997 from .52 in
1996. Current debt and capital lease
obligations increased by $62.3 million
as $75 million of borrowings were
required to fund current operations.

WORKING CAPITAL RATIO

(Current Assets/Current Liabilities)
Fiscal Years 1988-1997

Graph D displays
Amtrak’s working capital
ratio from 1988 to 1997.
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capital lease obligations
increased $287.1 million
related to equipment
purchases.

Amtrak has a $150
million unsecured bank

credit facility expiring in

December 1998. Borrowings under
this agreement bear interest based on
the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR), certificate of deposit rates,
or prime rate and are subject to
certain conditions. Amtrak pays
various fees on its credit lines.

In November 1997 Amtrak secured
financing related to 250 material
handling cars and has also financed
283 RoadRailers. This equipment is
in support of the express pilot
project. Amtrak is also planning a
major strategic acquisition and
investment involving high-speed
train service which will include 18
trainsets, 15 locomotives, and related
maintenance facilities. When
complete, Amtrak estimates that this
investment will result in additional

borrowings totaling in
excess of $800 million
by fiscal year 2000.

Graph D
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Note 1: FY94 expenses exclude $243.8
million in one-time charges.

As shown in Graph E,
Amtrak has shown
improvement in its oper-
ating ratio (the ratio of
total expenses to total
revenue) improving
from 1.59 in 1988 o
1.46 in 1997.

Graph E

Outlook

Subsequent to year end, federal legis-
lation was passed which had a signif-
icant positive impact on Amtrak’s
financial condition. Following is a
discussion of this legislation.

The Amtrak Reform and
Accountability Act of 1997 provides
Amtrak access to $2.1 billion under
the Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 and
authorizes operating and capital
grants for 1998 through 2002.
These grants decline from $1,138
million in 1998 to $955 million in
2002 reflecting gradually reducing
operating grants. Significant compo-
nents of the Act also include repeal
of the requirement for Amtrak to
operate a federally-mandated basic
route system for passenger service,
authorization for Amtrak to nego-
tiate changes in how it contracts out
certain labor functions, significant
liability reforms and replacement of
the existing Board of Directors. In
addition, the Act provides for the
establishment of a Reform Council,
responsible to Congress, to review,
evaluate and recommend changes to
improve Amtrak’s financial perfor-
mance. The Council is required to
provide quarterly reports to
Congress; if at any time more than
two years after enactment of the law
the Council finds that Amtrak will
not meet the goal of operating self-
sufficiency by 2002, plans for
Amtrak’s restructuring or liquidation
will begin. Therefore, it will be crit-
ical for Amtrak to continue its efforts
to improve operations, further
reduce costs, and increase revenues.

The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997
provides Amtrak with $2.1 billion in
funds to be used for qualified expen-
ditures as defined in the Act, which
include future equipment and facility
acquisitions and improvements, as
well as any interest and debt associ-
ated with these purchases. Amtrak
expects to be dependent on federal
capital expenditure grants well into
the future. Although this funding




REVENUE

EXPENSES

Operating Loss

Federal Operating Grant

Other Federal Contributions

Net Operating Loss
Noncash

Budget Result

Intercity NEC West Corporate Total
FY96 FY97 FY9%6 FY97 FY96 FY97 FY96 FY97 FY96 FY97
$48383 3 5151 $ 8679 3 9314 $:1841 ¢ 0045 050§ 7 $1554.8 $1.673.7
7385 801.1 10189 10532 272.0 284.1 . 289.0 2073 23184 2435.7
(254.7)  (286.0) (15100« (121.8) (87.9) (79.6) (27000 (274.6) (763.6)  (762.0)
7.0 225 - - - - - 2850 35
62.2 98.1 65.4 83.6 133 23.2 155 16.6 1564 _ 2215
(185.5)  (165.4) (85.6) (38.2) (74.6) (56.4) (2545)  (258.0) (322.2) (318.0)
80.1 90.9 142.0 146.0 14.7 14.2 32 35 2400 = 2476
$ (1054) $ (74.5) $ 564 - $ 1078 $.1(59.9) $ 42 2) $ (2513) S (261.5) $ (822) $ (704)

Table 1

FY 1996 and 1997 operating
results by major business unit
in millions of dollars.

significantly improves Amtrak’s
ability to achieve its capital goals in
the nearer term, it does not address
Amtrak’s longer term needs for a
dedicated capital funding source.

Results of Major Business Units

One of Amtrak’s most important
initiatives in 1995 was to create
strategic business units to provide
greater market awareness, competi-
tiveness, and customer focus.

Table 1 shows the 1996 and 1997
operating results for Amtraks three
strategic business units—the
Intercity, Northeast Corridor, and
Amtrak West—and for the corporate
service centers and offices which
collectively serve all three units. This
data is supplemental, unaudited
information. Note that the federal
operating grant (except for $7
million in 1996 and $22.5 million in
1997) is attributed to the company
as a whole rather than any individual
organizational unit.

As can be seen in the table above,
the Intercity business unit operating
loss was unfavorable in 1997 as
compared to 1996. These results
reflect primarily increased costs
related to: financing new equipment;
wages and benefits; maintenance of
equipment; and fuel, which were
partially offset by higher passenger
related revenues.

The Northeast Corridor business
unit revenues increased for the core
and commuter lines of business. The
core increase reflected higher
passenger revenues and [elecommu-
nication rights and property sales.
Higher expenses were primarily
related to wages and benefits, fuel
and power and advertising.

The West business unit results were
favorable reflecting higher passenger
and state supported revenue partially
offset by higher costs for wages and
benefits, equipment maintenance,
and schedule adherence.

Corporate revenues reflect the sale of
stock in 1997 and safe harbor
revenue in 1996.




REPORT OF INI]_EPEND_ENT AGGOUNTANTS -

To the Board of Directors
of National Railroad Passenger Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated state-
ments of operations, cash flows, and changes in capitalization present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of National Railroad- Passenger Corporation (Amtrak) and its subsidiaries at
September 30, 1997 and 1996, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements

are the responsibility of Amtrak’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these °

financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accor-
dance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above.

Arlington, Virginia
December 18, 1997
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CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEETS

Assets: September 30, September 30,
- 1997 ‘ 1996
(Thousands of dollars)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash SIS e e Ean T 36,376 $ 21168
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful éccoUnG_ =
of $629 and $6,366 in 1997 and 1996, respectively .. ...... 81,647 81,889
Materials and supplies . . ... .. .. SRR e e S . O 9'1,201_ 104,799 -
Other current HSSEIST S S e g g R e 1.2,010 4,330
- TORA CUTTENt B8BEtS . . - 1o rin e vir s v PSS B v s 212,186
-Pféperty and Equipment:’
Property and equipment .. ... ............... Lty " 8,275,366 7,305,482
Less — Accumﬁlated depreciation and amortization . ........ ‘(2,841,1_63) (2,605,599)
‘5,434,203 4,789,883 '
Other Assets_an_d Deferred Chavges .. 0. o0l v uiinin 81,869 23593
Total assets::. . .t Lo et s e e cetn SR I R06 $ 5,075,662




Liabilities and Gapitalizatinn: September 30, September 30,
: i : 1997 1996
(Thousands of dollars)
Current Liabilities: !
Aclbuntepiiails . = 0 tet L on . O $ 191,627 $ 162,570
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . ... ....:..: .. 161,571 - bl kol k9l
De-ferred-ticket revenue . . .- ...... 7. gho e ;‘ ........ e i 47,740 : 36,106
Curreﬁt debt and capital lease oblipations:. .. 1. L L T 120,188 57.854
Tonil cotent MO & 521,126 407581
: Long-Term Debt and Capital Lease Obligations: :
Capitalleaseoblipationes = n it o n o denie it 791,193 552.230
Equipment and other debt . . . . . . . : e ey o 425,044 376,911
: ‘ © 1,216,237 929,141
~ Other Liabilities and Deferred Crc;lits:
Casualty réserves ........... B S S T ok 138,453 ‘ 155,795
Postretirement employee benefits obligation ........... ot 115,549 111,294
~ Advances from railroads and commuter agéncies : ......... 15,258 : 15,884
Environmental resefve el o e e e 49 383 . : 39,454.
Gl e e e o e e 1455 6,106
- 320,098 328,533
Torl Wbl o s 2,057,461 1,665,255
Commitments and Contingencies
Capitz;ﬁzation. (see Consélidatedr Statements of :
Changes in Capitalization) ............... 000u... - 3,679,845 3430407
Total liabilities and capitalization . .. ............ S 55,737,306 $5,075,662
~ The accompanying notes are lIi;l integral part of these consolidated balance -sheets.
: :
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS _

For the Years Ended : - : September 30, -Seplemb_er 30,
4 ' : 1997 1996
(Thousands of dollars)

Revenues: _ : :
Bassamerrtelited: - oo S ko s e e $1,034,004 . $ 964,867
Other ........ PR e e 1 306991 248,086
‘Total revenues from Core Business ............ Ve e 1,340,996 212,953
Commuter .......... i e 241,570 234,378
Reémdbnaresalyle s = - o0 s e o0 SR e e e s 91,138 107,505
TN s s o d e 1,673,;104 ' 1,554,836
Expenses: _
Salaries, wages, and benefﬁs .............. TR e l,i98,477 1.236:257
A opetations=. s oo gsr s Dee L Lorie B ol e e 365,413 ©22320,542
Facility arid otficerelated = e P sasi e B2 181,333
Maintenance of way goods and services .......... ...l 45,803 et 0
Advertisingandsales oo S o e SRSt 97,888 108,590
Casualty and accident claims . . . . ...................... '_69,621 ; ‘65,818
e b g e e 75,844 60,223
:Depreciation and amortization .. ... -. st et T 24_1’;764 237,972
Bl e i G I e e o e L R Ao 53,731 48,310
Totabialeiien .. s o e 2435653 2318414
Bebdns ot S Hhoslae 'S 761,949 $ 763,578

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.




For the Years Ended

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

September 30,

~ September 30,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.

1997 1996
(Thousands of dollars)
‘Cash Flows From Operating Activities: .
Netloss ...... % (761,949) $(763,578)
Adiu'slﬁ]ens to reconcile net loss to niet cash :
used in operating activities;
Depreciation and amortization . . . .......... S e 241,764 237977
Provision for losses on accounts receivable . ............. s 3:172 4,309
Provision for inventory loss and obsolescence_ ............ 14,157 i -
Ohier b TS e e 2,127) -
Changes in assets and liabilities: :
Pecredse indccounts-recenvable s .. e ey 19,970 3,761
Inicrease 1 'materials and supplies = . ¢ .1 oo T L . (559) (2,967)
: (.Increase) decrease in other currentassets ... ....: ... .., (_7,680) 4,235
Increase in other assets and deferred cha_rges. ........... (9,621) (3.319)
- Increase in accounts payable, deferred ticket revénue,
and accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . . . . . 65,185 23,563
Decrease in other liabilities and deferred credits .. ....... (8,435) (19,893)
Net cash used in operatiﬁg a-.ctivities' ..... e e (446,123) (515,917)
Cash Flows Froﬁ;’lnvesﬁng Activities: :
Purchases and refurbishments of property and equipment . . .. (560,443) (419,522)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment . ........ _ 2,886 3,082
Cash released from restricted prbceeds of tax benetfits sales - 9,125
Cash investments . .... e e R e S el 5 (54)
. Proceeds from dispositions of cash investments . ........... - : 54
‘Net cash used in investing activities . .................  (557,557) (407,315)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from issuance of preferredstock .. ................ 602,100 619,100
Proceeds from federal paid-incapital . ..o ER e 385,597 270,842
. Proceeds from federal and state capital payments . .. .. Cba o 20,790 23563
Proceeds from debt and lease financings . . . . s AL 181,483 41,553
* Repayments of debt and capital lease obligations ........... ©(171,082) - (38,500)
Net cash provided‘l.)y financing activities ........... s 1,018,888 916,558
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. .. ... ... 15,208 (6,674)
Cash and cash eciuivalents—-b_eginni‘ng of year . .. ............ 21,168 _27,8"1;_2
Cash and cash equivaleﬁi_s'_'end of year . . . .. e Sc s Tt $ 36,376 $ 21,168
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At the close of fiscal year 1997, management
estimated it would end fiscal year 1998 with a
cash shortfall of $312 million, absent the success
of any initiativesto further improve revenues
and reduce costs. The combination of lower
than expected operating grants, lack of a dedi-
cated source for capital funding, unsuccessful
efforts to revise operations, and delays in needed
- legislative reforms resulted in a prediction that
without significant improvement Amtrak risked
insolvency. In its fiscal year 1998-2000 Strategic
Business Plan, Amtrak developed plans t©
reduce the projected fiscal year 1998 cash short-
fall to $100 million. Amtrak expected to cover
its projected fiscal yezif 1998 cash shortfall
through borrowings from private lending insti-
‘tutions under a line of credit facility.

Subsequent to fiscal year-end, federal Iegislation
was passed that (i) p,rc_)'vides Amtrak access to
$2.1 billion to fund capital expenditure. needs,
(ii) authorizes significant reforms to Amtrak -
operations, (iii) specifies a goal of opérating self-
sufficiency in the next five years, and (iv)_, estab-
lishes new and additional oversight processes.
While the combination of these events essen-
tially eliminates the risk of insolvency in fiscal
year 1998, Amtrak must continue on a path
toward reaching operating self-sufficiency in
-order to guarantee its survival into the future. -

Also subsequent to fiscal year end, Amtrak and
the Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way .
Employes (BMWE) ratified an agreement which
provided for wage increases for the period July.
1995 through December 1999, to be paid over
the next three years. A liability for the retroac-
tive portion of this increase is included in the
1997 Consolidated Balance Sheet. This agree- '
“ment also includes certain work rule changes
and contingencies related to Amtrak’s funding.
Amtrak has labor agreemeﬁts with 12 other
labor unions which are up for renegotiation.
While it is possible these unions will enter into
‘negotiations to secure agreements similar to that
of the BMWE, any amounts related to such _
agreements cannot be reasonably estimated.

Amtrak Reform and Accountability Act of 1997

In 1994, 'Congress and the Administration
directed Amtrak to dévelop a strategy to achieve
operating self-sufficiency by 2002. Accordingly,
in December 1994, Amtrak’s Board of Directors
adopted a 1995-2000 strategic business plan to

NUTES T0 Bl]NS[]LII]ATE[l FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996

achieve the elimination or significant reduction

of federal operating grants.

The Amtrak Reform and Accbuntabilily Act of
1997 (Public Law 105-134) reinforces the
requirement for Amtrak to reach operating self-

* sufficiency, and authorizes gradually reducing

operating grants through 2002. Significant
components of the Act include repeal of the
requirement for Amtrak to operate a federally-
mandated basic route system for passenger
service, and the Statutorily prescribed protec-
tions for employees affected by a route discon--
tinuance, authorization for Amtrak to negotiate
changes in how it contracts out certain labor
functions, significant liability reforms and
replacement of the existing Board of Directors.
In addition, the Act pfovides_ for the establish-
ment of a Reform Council, responsible to
Congress, to review, evaluate and recommend

* changes to improve Amtrak’s financial perfor-

mance. The Council is required to provide quar-
terly reports to Congress; if at any time more -
than two years after enactment of the law the
Council finds that Amtrak will not meet the goal

- of operating self-sufficiency by 2002, plans for-

Amtrak’s restructuring or liquidation will begin.
Therefore, it will be critical for Amtrak to
continue its efforts to improve operations,
further reduce costs, and increase revenues.

Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997

Amtrak expects to be dependent on federal
capital expenditure grants well into the future to
fund méjdr repairs to and replacements of its
facilities, railway, and equipment, and for repay-
ment of principal under long-term loans and
lease arrangements. Federal capital grants will

~ also be necessary for Amtrak to realize the

revenue expected from planned new service
lines, such as high-speed rail service, mail and
express services.

The Téxpay'er Relief Act of 1997 (Public Law .
105-34) provides Amtrak with $2.1 billion in
funds to be used for qualified expenditures as
defined in the Act, which include future equip-
ment and facility acquisitions and improve-
ments, as well as the related interest and debt
principal obligations incurred for such acquisi-
tions and improvements. While this funding
significantly impfoves Amtrak’s ability to achieve
its capital goals in the nearer future, it does not
address Amtrak’s longer term needs for a dedi-

cated capltal funding source.
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Outlook :
Amtrak management continues to seek and plan
for increased revenues, operating changes to:
reduce costs and increase efficiency, and a
predictable capital expenditure. funding flow.
Although neither management’s success in -
attaining operational self-sufficiency in the estab-
lished time frame nor the cofnpany’s ability to
secure a longer term source for capital expendi-
tures funding can be predicted, the events above
improve Amtrak’s ability to achieve these goals.

Note 4: Federal and State Fﬁhding

. Funds are provided to Amtrak through federal

. and state payments for operations and for capital
acquisitions and improveménts. For funds
received from the federal government prior to
December 2, 1997, the Rail Passenger Service

Act (49 U.S.C. 24304) required Amtrak to issue

to the United States Secretary of Transportation
preferred stock equal in par value to all federal
operating payments and most federal capital
payments received subsequent to October 1, 1981,
as well as’capital and certain operating payments
received prior to that date. Public Law 105-66
approved on October 27, 1997, provides
$543,000,000 in federal funds to Amtrak for
fiscal year 1998, of which $344,000,000 is for
operating purposes and designated mandatory
passenger rail service payments, and
$199,000,000 for capital improvements.
Currently the law specifies that Amtrak’s access
to the $2.1 billion in tax refunds under the
Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 (see Note 3) will
make it ineligible for the $199,000,000 for
capital improvements. :

Federal paid-in capital, included in the
Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Capitalization, includes certain funding received
from the federal government to finance acquisi-
tion of and improvemems to property and
equipment. In exchange for past and prospective
funding, Amtrak issued two promissory notes to
the United States. The first note matures on
November 1, 2082, with successive 99-year
renewal terms, and is secured by certain Amtrak
rolling stock. The second note matures on .
December 31, 2975, and is secured by Amtrak’s
real property. Neither of the notes bears interest,
unless prepaid (which Amtrak does not intend

to do). The federal govemmén[’s security
interest in Amtrak’ real property and certain
rolling stock entitles it to repayment plus
interest in the event Amtrak ceases operations, is
acquired by another entity, or seeks relief under
bankruptcy or insolvency laws.

Note 5: Preferred and Common Stock

At September 30, 1997, 106,334,478 shares of
$100 par value préferred stock were authorized,
all of which were issued and outstanding.

: "D_uring October 1997, 783,000 shares were

issued at par value increasing the total number
of authorized shares issued and outstanding to :
107,117,478. At September 30, 1996,
100,313,478 shares were authorized, all of
which were iSsue_d and outstanding. All issued
and outstanding preferred shares are held by the
Secretary of Transportation for the benefit of the

- federal government. Dividends are to be fixed at

a rate not less than 6% per annum, and are
cumulative so that no dividends may be paid on
the common shares prior to the payment of all
accrued but unpaid dividends on the preferred

- shares. No -div-idends_havelbeen declared. Prior

to March 2, 1 998, the preferred-stockholder was
also entitled to a liquidation preference over
common shares involving a payment of not less
than par value plus all accrued unpaid divi-
dends. Each share of preferred stock is convert-
ible into 10 shares of common stock at the
option of the preferred stockholder.

The Amtrak Reform and Accountability Act (see
Note 3) results in significant modifications to
Amtrak’s capital structure. The Act abolishes the
voting rights and the liquidation preference of the
preferred stockholder, and continued accrual of
the 6% annual cumulative preferred stock divi-
dend; and establishes that no additional preferred
stock will be issued by Amtrak in exchange for
federal grants received. The Act also requires that
Amtrak redeem at fair market value the shares of
common stock outstanding as of December 2,
1997, by the end of fiscal year 2002.

At September 30, 1997 and 1996, 10,000,000
shares of $10 par value common stock were
authorized, of which 9,385,694 shares were
issued and outstanding.

.
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———— NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ——

For the Years Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996

Note 6: Property and Equipment - _
Total fixed assets presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following at-
September 30, 1997 and 1996 (in thousands): '

1997 : 1996

Locomotives.‘................_............'- .......... $ - 901,046 ‘$ 647,354
Passénger CALS et e R 2 .. .......... 2,044,042 1,992 870 :
Oferrolingstool - - s e e : 170,845 149,341
Right-of-way properties .. ................. e 3,687,783 3,237,020
Other properties .........:... e e : 1,260,35-_2 1,166,037
Leasehold improvements . ... . . ke Slmaee 2% .......... : 211,208 - 202,860

. : : 8,275,366 : 7,395,482
: LesS—A‘ccumulated'depreéiatiOn and ; :

AOTTEAON. ct s i Pat o e e (2,841,163) (2,605,599)
Net property and equipmenit ................. Soliar $ 5,434,203 $ 4,789,883

Note 7: Borrowing Arrangements
Total equipment and other debt presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the
following at September 30, 1997 and 1996 (in thousands):

1997 1996

Current Long-term Current Long-term
Equipment obligations .. ............... $10,260 - $347 035 $ 45l . $292,049
Credii ageeesients  © 0. 0 A e 78,000 34,500 3,000
Motes pavable. . v 5540 32,059 5540 . - 31,999
Bonds ., i e S : 30,000 _ e 30,000
Constiictioncloan: —ic s s T Er s 4,683 - L83 4,683 : T
UDAG loan ........ e o BT o e 12,357
' $98,613 $425,044 $49, 604 $376,911
Under separate base order and option order ~ Under a financing arrangement Amtrak has
financing arrangements, Amtrak has taken taken delivery of 50 passenger cars. The related
delivery of 195 passenger cars. Principal repay- borrowing bears interest at the LIBOR and
~ments of all remaining outstanding debt management intends to refinance it on a long-
. pertaining to the 140 base order cars are due in =~ term basis. :

: i . _
SoweeiRe Suaen e menG tauny Amtrak had a $150,000,000 revolving credit

Se) 2015. Princi f all . :
i eIie mpdnncnts OF 8 facility with a consortium of banks expiring in

outstanc?ing s pe:-rta}nlng > thle o s December 1997, Borrowings under this agree-

are due in consecutive quarterly installments
through October 2016. Interest on the base order
is fixed while interest on the option order debt is
LIBOR based. All outstanding base and option

_order debt amounts are secured by the finished

passenger cars.

ment bore interest based on the London.

Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), certificate of -
deposit rates, prime rate, or federal funds rate.
“Amtrak paid various fees on these credit lines.
As of September 30, 1997, Amtrak had drawn




$‘75,000,000 from this facility, all of which was
repaid in October 1997. In December 1997,
Amtrak secured a new $150,000,000 revolving
credit facility with a consortium of banks under
substantially the same terms, f;kpiriﬁg in

- December 1998.

Under a credit agreement, Amt}’ak hasa -
$3,000,000 outstanding balance at September 30,
1997, bearing interest at the LIBOR. This
amount is being repaid in $1,500,000 quarterly
installments through March 1998.

Under a term hote’, Amtrak has a $4,095,000
outstanding balance due at September 30, 1997,
bearing interest at the LIBOR, This amount is
being repaid in $585,000 quarterly i_nstallr'nenr_s‘
through June 1999. Amtrak acquired a parking
facility located in Chicago in exchange for a
$20,000,000 promissory note bearing a fixed -
rate of interest and due in full in December
2003. The seller has secured a mortgage on the
facility as well as an irrevocable unconditional
$4,000,000 letter of credit as collateral.

At September 30, 1997, CUS is obligated to
repay $7,904,000 under a noninterest bearihg
note payable. The note is being repaid in
$3,200,000 annual installments each October
31st through 1997, and on November 2, 1998.
The remaining balance is then due on

- November 1, 1999. Amtrak is guaranteemg
payment of all amounts due.

Included in TSL's long-term debt at September 30,
1997 are $30,000,000 of Philadelphia Authority
for Industrial Development tax-exempt private-
activity bonds (Bonds) issued for the benefit of
TSL’s rehabilitation of 30th Street Station
(Station) in the city of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania (City). The Bonds were issued on
December 30, 1987, mature on January 1, 2011,
and bear interest at a fixed or variable rate as
stipulated in the bond indenture. Interest is
payable until maturity at intervals determined
under provisions in the bond indenture. No
amortization of bond principal prior to maturity
is required. Amtrak is required to make annual
deposits into a sinking fund to be used to pay off

. the bonds when they mature. As of September 30,
1997 Amtrak’s aggregate deposits into the fund
were $3,000,000. Since the Bonds are subject to
optional tender by the bondholders, TSL has
‘executed a Liquidity Facility which provides
funds to purchase the Bonds surrendered under
the optional tender provisions.

—NUTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996

TSL has a construction loan agréemem Which Al
TSL's option bears interest at the LIBOR or the
prime ,raté. Principal repayment is due in annual
installments each April to be paid in full by
November 17, 1998. The loan is secured by a
leasehold mortgage on TSL’s right and interest

in the Station.

TSL has an obligation to the City under an
Urban Development Action Grant (UDAG) loan
agreement as of September 30, 1996. Prlnc1pal is

~ being repaid in $130, 000 annual installments .

each November 29th through 2011 with the

‘balance due on November 29, 2012. The City’s

rights under the UDAG loan agreement are
secured by a leasehold mortgage. The UDAG
loan bears no interest.

The welghted average interest rate on all
interest—bearing borrowings was .7.0% and 7.2%

.per annum at September 30, 1997 and 1996,

respéctively.

At September 30, 1997, scheduled maturities of
long-term equipment and .other debt over the
next five years are as follows:

Year Ending Amounts
September.30 (In Thousands)
BORRE R s $ 98,613
HOR0 st e e S 25,633
200 e e e e e 14,600
e e 12,560
L5 b o R B SR e R s 13,262
hercalers. - e L 358,989

$523,657

Note 8: Leasing Arrangements

" Capital Leases

Amtrak leases items of equipment, primarily

- passenger cars and locomotives, under capital

leasing arrangements. At September 30, 1997
and 1996, the gross amount of assets recorded
under capital leases was $881,071,000 (55% for
locomotives, 42% for passenger cars, and 3% for
other assets), and $638,505,000 (34% for loco- .
motives, 58% for passenger cars, and 8% for
other assets), respectively, with accumulated
amortization of $148,645,000 and $130,960,000,
respectively. At September 30, 1997, future
minimum lease payments under capital leases
were as follows: ;
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Year Ending Amounts

Operating Leases

At September 30, 1997, Amtrak was obligated
for the following minimum rental payments,
principally for station and office space, under
operating leases that have initial or remaining
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year:

September 30 (In Thousands)
B . e e $ 73,694
A e e T e %1,898
ORI e is it S ol e 72,112
Plh, 0 d et e e L e s 80,883
eIy s PSS Nam s ST e 77,483
Fhetealter — v =m0 s o 1,014,249 -
1,390,3 19

Less amount representing

HaTE b R i i S Sl e ) A e e 55 ]
Present value of minimum- .

lease payments at

September 30,1997 = " $ 812,768

Year Ending Amounts

September 30 “(In Thousands)
e $ 10,970
147,010 T Sl A e 11,403
2000 - 5 e e T PR i
IO s e e e 10,254
OO e e e 9,786
Phereafter = o-of s o s o 88,810
$142.340

Rent expense for the years ended September 30,
1997 and 1996 was $32,684,000 and
$28,805,000, respectively.

—— NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended September-30, 1997 and 1996

Note 9: Investment in Gaptlve Insurance

_Bnmpany

In January 1997, Amtrak organized and acquired
a 100% interest in PRIL through an $8,182,000
capital infusion. Incorporated under the laws of
Bermuda on December 18, 1996, as a Class 1
captive insurance company, PRIL provides prop-
erty insurance coverage to Amtrak, and insur-
ance covering Amtrak employees performing
third-party work. PRIL reinsures a significant
portion of the risk it assumes:

Note 10: Contingencies

Amtrak is involved in various litigation and arbi-
tration in the normal course of business. While
the outcome of these matters cannot be
predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of
management and counsel that the disposition of
these matters will not materially affect Amtrak’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amtrak has self-insured certain risks ‘with
respect to losses for third-party liability and
property damage. Insurance coverage for liability
losses from $10,000,000 to $200,000,000 is
provided through a railroad industry captive ‘
insurance company and commercial insurance
companies. The Amtrak Reform and
Accountability Act of 1997 limits the amount
passéngers may recover from a single accident to
an aggregate of $200,000,000.

Note 11: Retirement Benehts

Pension Plan

Amtrak has a qualified noncontrlbutory defined
benefit retirement plan held in trust covering
nonunion employees and certain union
employees (Plan). Benefits are based on years .of
credited service, and the employee’s average
compensation during the five highest consecu-

~ tive years. Amtrak’s funding policy is to periodi-

cally contribute amounts recommended by
outside actuaries. The following tables set forth
the Plan’s funded status, amountis recognized in
the Consolidated Balanég Sheets at September 30,
1997 and 1996, and components of the net
pension expense for 1997 and 1996:




Actuarial preseﬁt value of benefit obligations:
benefits of $83,499 and $81,170, respecuvely

Plan assets at fair value, primarily fixed income

. Unrecognized prior service cost bemg amortized

Accrued pension expense recognized in

following components:

Interest cost on projected benefit obhgauon

: The weighted average discount rate used in
7.5% in 1997 and 1996. The projected rate of

in 1997 and 1996. The assumed long-term rate
of return on Plan assets was 8.0% in 1997 and
1996. The unfunded accrued pension cost at
September 30, 1986, is being amortized over the
remaining average service life of Plan members,
and $203,000 and $511,000, net of amortiza-
tion, is included under “Postretirement
employee benefits obligation™ in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30,
1997 and 1996, respectively.

Other Postretirement Benefits
Amtrak provides medical benefits to its retirees
and life insurance to some retirees in limited

" circumstances. Substantlal]y all salaried
employees may become eligible for medical
benefits if they meet the service requirement and
reach the hormal retirement age while still E
working for Amtrak. Company—provided
medical benefits are reduced when covered indi-
viduals become eligible for Medicare benefits or

Accumulated benefit obligation, including vested

imvestments and listéd stoeks .5 -, 0w
Projected benefit obligation for service rendered to dute o'
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation

OVer I8 URatE e s L R e :
Unrecogmzed MEbEain - o et e o =
Unrecognized net asset existing at October 1, 1986

being amortized over 11.6 years . ............
Others o i EelE . Doy e :

Consolidated Balance Sheets . .. ........... =

Service cost—benefits earned during the period
Actual return on Plan assets ... ...... L
Net amortization and deferral ............ 2

Curtailment gain . . ... .. G e 5
Netspefimioniomeedit: o000 2o 3l S o o oy

determining the projected benefit obligation was

increase in future compensation levels was 4.0%

%-m NOTES T[l GUNSOI.II]ATEI] FINANGIAL STATEMENTS e

For the Years Ended Septcmber 30, 1997 and 1996

1997 1996
(Thousands of_doﬂars)‘ =

Net pension expense for 1997 and 1996 iﬁcluded the

.......... $ 84,132 $ 82,013
.......... $142,156 $121,085
107,698 101,328
......... 34,458 19,757
.......... 4,244 5,031
.......... (44,701) (29,203)
.......... ; (690) (1,735)
....... e (22) ‘ :
.......... $ (6,711) $ (6,150)
......... $ 3913 $ 3,837
.......... 7,393 7,059
............ (25.718) (16,586)
.......... 14,350 6,695
........... = w30
.......... S 6D $ (389

reach age 65, whichever comes first. Medical
benefits are subject to copayment provisions and
other limitations. Amtrak continues to fund its
postretirement benefits program on a pay-as-
you-go basis, Cash payments on these benefits
were $4,069,000 and $3,318,000 for 1997 and
1996, respectively. Effective January 1, 1997,
Amutrak incorporated its railroad agreement

_employees’ healthcare benefits into its single
. employer plan (Plan). These benefits are subject

to the provisions of FAS 106, and resulted in a
$24,888,000 increase in the Plan’s accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation relating to
prior years’ service. This‘unreco'gnized prior
service cost is being amortized to postretirement
bén_efits expensé over 20.7 years. Railroad agree-
ment employees’ life insurance benefits are
covered by a separate multiemployer plan, and

_ therefore are not subject to the provisions of FAS

106. The following tables set forth the liability
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
September 30, 1997-and 1996 and components
of the net postretirement benefits expense for -
1997 and 1996:
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N[]TES T0 CONSOLIDATED

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:
~Former employees.

Other active employees

- Unrecognized net gain

Total postretirement benefits liability

_included the following components:

Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation
et amortizations o oo oo s Fla i =
Chrvtailmient gain 5 v as s i i
Net postretirement benefits expense . .

The weighted average discount rate used in
determining the accumulated benefit obligation

- was 7.5% in 1997 and 1996. For measuring the
expected benefit obligation, 7.0% and 7.5%

- annual rates of increase in the per capita claims
cost were assumed for fiscal years 1997 and
1996, respectively. This rate was assumed to
decrease to 6.5% in 1998, then gradually
decrease to 4.5% by 2002, and remain at that
level thereafter. If the assumed healthcare cost
trend rate were increased by one percéntage
point each year, the 1997 net postretirement
benefit expense and the related accumulated
benefit obligation would increase by $1,910,000
and $18,367,000_, respectively.

Note 12: Environmental Matters

Some of Amtrak’s past and present operations
involve activities which are subject to extensive
and changing federal and state environmental
regulations which can give rise to environmental
issues. As a result of’its operations and acquired
properties, Amtrak is from time to time involved
in administrative and judicial proceedings and
administrative inquiries related to environmental
mafte_:rs.

In 1976, Amtrak acquired its Norfheast Corridor
properties. These properties had been oécupied
and used for many years by a railroad which had
declared bankruptcy during the Iearly 1970%s. It
is Amtrak’s policy to capitalize recoverable reme-
diation costs for properties acquired with
existing environmental conditions and to
expense remediation costs incurred on proper-
ties for environmental clean-up matters occur-

46

.................................. $ 40,686
Fully eligible active employees ...............

Unrecognized prior service cost /o - i

" Service cost—benefits earned during the period

FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996

Net postretirement benefits expense for 1997 and 1996

1997 1996
(Thousands of dollars)
$ 38,288
......... 9,642 7,664
62,295 31,983
......... (24,287) ~
.......... 23.621 28,197
.......... $111,957 $106,132 - .
......... $ 23521 $ 2,488
......... 6,895 5,461
.......... (522) (1,450)
.......... Lo b (1,174)
......... $ 9,804

3 5305

ring after acquisition. This reserve is periodi-
cally adjusted based on Amtrak’s present esti-
mate of the costs it will incur related to these
sites and/or actual expenditures made, At
September 30, 1997 and 1996, the reserve
balance stood at $49,383,000 and $39,454,000,
respectively. Of these amounts $48,803,000 and
$38,458,000 relate to estimated capitalizable
costs to be incurred as of September 30, 1997
and 1996, respectively. Costs of future expendi-
tures for environmental remediation obligations
are not discounted to their present value.
Accordingly, at September 30, 1997 and 1996, a
deferred charge for each amount is included in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets under
“Deferred charges and other”. Amtrak has not
recorded any receivables for recoveries from
other parties or from insurance because such

. recoveries are not sufficiently certain.

Amtrak’s management and counsel believe that
additional future remedial actions that might be - :
taken or required, if any, will not be material to
Amntrak’s financial positjon.

Note 13: Fair Value of Financial
Instruments

For cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable, the carrying amounts approximate

- fair value because of the short maturities of
‘ these instruments. The carrying amounts of the

credit égreemenl;s, bonds, construction loan, and
portions of notes payable and equipment obliga-
tions approximate fair value. All charge interest
at rates that are periodically adjusted to market.
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~ For the Years Ended September 30, 1997 and 1996

The estimated fair values of remammg e’qulpment obligations and notes payable weére based upon
discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates available to Amtrak and CUS at September 30,
1997 and 1996 for debt with the same remaining maturities. Although by nature interest free, the
UDAG loan was also valued based upon a discounted cash flow analysis using September 30, 1997

follows (amounts in thousands):

and 1996 market interest rates. The estimated fair values of these financial instruments are as

Note 14: Restructuring Reserve
In 1994, Amtrak announced its plan for a major
- reorganization of the corporation around defin-
able strategic business units (SBUs) and as a
result recorded a restructuring charge. The
charge included severance and other personnel
reduction costs, as well as the writedown of old
and inefficient rolling stock to be disposed of as
. routes and services were adjusted. Through

were made against the reserve leaving a
remaining reserve balance at September 30,

the Consolidated Balance Sheets under “Accrued
‘expenses and other current liabilities” for 1996.

1997 1996
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value “Amount Value
Notes payable:. el o TR S N3 590 $ 28,346 $ 37,539 - $ 27,646
Eqﬁipment obligatiohs S I oloie T $358,195 $370,320 © $296,800 : $303,886
UDAGloan: i nowes s e e $ 12,357 $ 4432 $.12487 $ 4337

1996, workforce and equipment related charges

1996 of $15,213,000. This balance is included in :

" During 1997, final charges were made ageinst
the reserve relating to workforce severances and
eqﬁi'pment disposals. The remaining reserve
balance of $11,160,000; virtually all equipment

~ related, was reversed and-credited to deprecia- :
tion expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Note 15: Supplemental Cash Flow
Information

For the years ended September 30, 1997

and 1996, Amtrak engaged in the following
investing and financing activities that affected
recognized assets and liabilities, but did not
result in a change in cash and cash equivalents
(amounts in thousands): 2

1997 1996
Net increase in obligation due to third-party lenders
in connection with the construction and lease
relingrcing o passenpercars . t5 t o oe o s Dan $ 71,229 $112,810
Interest ea_rned-on escrowed proceeds of tax benefitssales . ... $ - B $ 112
Capital lease obli_gatiens incurred in connection 3
: with the leasing of new equfpmen{ e i Ll e e $267,800 $ 34,160

1997 and 1996 respeetlvely

Cash mterest of $73,530,000 and $62,890 000 was paid during the years ended September 30,
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management is responsible for the preparation and intégrity of the consolidated financial statements

‘presented in this Annual Report. These statements haye been prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis and necessarily include some amounts
that are based on managements best estimates and judgment. Management considers that the finan-
cial statements present fairly Amtrak’s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

To meet its respohsibiiity, management maintains a corhprehensive system of internal controls, poli-
cies and procedures to assure the proper authorization of transactions, the safeguarding of assets and
reliability of financial information. The system provides reasonable assurance, not absolute, that the
related records fairly reflect all transactions in accordance with managements authorization, and are
properly recorded so that reliable financial records are maintained and reports can be prepared. The -
concept of reasonable assurance is based on the recognition that the cost of a system of internal
controls must be related to the benefits derived.

An important part of the internal controls system, is Amtrak’s intent to maintain a high standard of
ethical conduct in all business activities. Internal accounting controls, -operating controls, as well as
a corporate rules of conduct and a business ethics policy, are documeénted and communicated to all
levels of management. ; i

The Board of Directors reviews the system of internal controls and financial reporting. The Board
meets and consults regularly with management, the internal auditors and the independent accoun-
tants to review the scope and results of their work. The accounting firm of Price Waterhouse LLP has
performed an independent examination of the financial Staterﬁems and has full and free access to

meet with the Board, without management representatives present, to d_ispuss the results of the audit.

- Thomas M. Downs Alfréd S. Altschul : :
Chairman, President and CEO Chief Financial Officer




STATISTICAL APPENDIX TO AMTRAK* FYS7 ANNUAL REPORT

Budget Result

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: FYs8  FY89 FY90 FY91 FY92 FY93 FY94 FY95 FY96  FY97
Revenues: (in millions of dollars)
Transportation 703 801 85 887 856 870 809 808 838 895
Food & Beverage 64 69 75 78 74 73 il 66 63 69
403B Services 9 8 il 16 21 26 25 36 64 70
Passenger Related - TS 879 942 980 950 969 913 910 965 1,034
Commuter Fees : 58 .73 76 80 81 84 83 92 84 72
Freight 27 21 18 15 17 16 i 19 18 16
Real Estate 40 D2 39 39 34 43 38 Bl 37 25
Mail Baggage & Express 35 37 38 47 48 23 59 61 67 70
Other 38 50 46 32 16 22 42 64 41 94
Other 157 233 218 214 196 27 239 267 248 A
Commuter Operating 79 83 90 99 116 162 184 215 L5 242
Reimbursable 55 iz 58 65 63 35 77 107 108 91
Total Revenue 1,107 1,269 1,308 1,359 1,325 1,403 1,413 1,497 1,555 1,674 .
Expenses: (in millions of dollars) . :
Salaries Wages and Overtime 680 722 738 733 746 811 856 865 857 893
Employee Benefits 287 312 338 342 330 343 349 355 354 377
Postretirement Benefits - - - - - - 101 - - -
Employee Related 14 19 21 19 20 23 24 2] 25 29
Facility and Office Related 121 151 144 140 148 149 153 172, 181 187
Train Operations L7 Do 381 408 . 382 359 358 321 321 365
Maintenance of Way Goods and Services 40 48 40 40 42 43 45 73 59 46
Advertising and Sales 72 89 93 96 92 e o) 91 - 90 109 98
Financial : 65 80 L2 79 81 102 185 144 149 160
Depreciation 154 166 182 203 206 206 245 230 238 242
Restructuring Charges - - - - - - 72 13 - =
Other Expenses i 14 3 20 (10) 7 12 19 25 o |
Total Expenses 1,757 1,935 2,012 2,081 2,037 2,134 2,490 2,305 2318 2,436
‘One-time Charges : - - - - - - 244 - - ;
Total Expenses excluding one-time charges' 1,757 1,935 2,012 2,081 2,037 2,134 2,246 2305 2,318 2,436
Operating Loss (650) (665) (703) (722) G ) (731) (834) (808) (764) (762)
Federal Grants: (in mittions of dotlars) : ,
Federal Operating Grant 532 554 520 343 331 351 352 392 285 223
Excess Railroad Retirement Taxes - - - 145 Log) 147 150" 150 120 142
Federal Capital - Interest - - - e = - - - - F201
Federal Capital - Progressive Overhaul - - - - - - - - 36 37
_ Total Federal Grants 532 554 520 488 481 498 502 542 441 444
Net Loss (118) (111) (183) (234) (231) (233) (332) (266) (322) (318)
Noncash 154 166 182 203 206 206 256 254 240 248
35 54 @) (1) 25) Q@7 (76) (12) (82) (70)
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This annual report was written, designed and printed by Amtrak personnel.
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